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@
Income Tax Act ITA 134 12 6

(M

Q)

(®)
(i)

(i) 2004
(ii) 2006 17

(iii) 2007 15

) (i)
(iii)

)

FRS 39 FRS109
FRS39 FRS109

ITA 34A FRS39
FRS39
FRS39
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FRS109 2018 FRS39
ITA  34AA FRS109
FRS109
ITA  34A 34AA
©
@
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

1,063,749 2,480,340 2,539,235 2,392,559 2,228,050
115,779 863,414 975,192 892,289 547,406
69,241 688,604 755,393 685,555 384,547

69,241 688,604 755,393 601,000 266,349
- - - 84,555 118,198
68,460 688,717 755,319 672,708 373,538

68,460 688,717 755,319 588,153 255,340
- - - 84,555 118,198
0.57 5.71 6.27 5.00 2.22

7,835,562 8,057,591 7,781,347 7,441,560 9,530,263
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8,787,552 9,250,078 9,767,142 9,606,826 11,446,308
) 89.2 87.1 79.7 77.5 83.3
246,510 1,085,880 1,146,414 1,255,876 1,164,832
/ 114,276 (246,412)  (105,351) 456,867 (270,126)
(309,551) (1,105,483) (663,586) (2,774,728)  (980,151)
3,994,084 3,947,250 4,214,237 3,833,904 4,963,436
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
5,816,955 6,132,442 5,907,665 4,711,999 6,846,187
6,209,596 6,549,992 6,394,043 5,376,827 7,102,541
%) 093.7 93.6 92.4 87.6 96.4
2,406,853 3,529,675 3,328,660 2,868,836 3,771,777
1984
1931 2004
1984 16
1986 1986 11 19
1987 1987 20
1993 1993
2005 2005 12 12
2006
2006 12
Resorts World Sentosa RWS
2007 2007 16 RWS
2008 2008 24
RWSPL
40
2009 2009 27
2010 RWS
2010 14
2010 18
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2012 RWS
2012 11 22
2012 12 RWS
2014
50:50
JV
2015 2015 23 RWSPL 22 7000
2015 30
2017 2017 JV
2017
2017 10 24 200
2017 12 29
2018 2018 XA
2018 X1
2019 2019 RWSPL
RWS 45
2019 25 8000
RWSPL 22 7000
2020 2020
/ 100
Sy —RUSRAY % 17 4 FROM
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49
Universal Studio Singapore USS
Adventure Cove Waterpark ACW
Meetings, Incentives, Conventions and Exhibitions MICE
@
RWS Uss ACw
Uss
2014
6,000

800 100,000

ACW 14 ACW

(b)
RWS 1,600 RWS

2015 Genting Hotel Jurong
GHJ GHJ

©

60 RWS RWS

RWS 45

Q)
RWS
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VIP
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15,000
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2,400
®)
©
@
2020 12 31 46
2,000,000,000 100%
098269
RWS
RWSPL
Genting
Berhad GENT 2021 26 GENT
Genting Overseas
Holdings Limited GOHL 52.66%
(¢)

€Y)
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30
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30
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100

RWS 2010 CRA 2010 14
RWS 2013 2016 2019

RWS
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Casino Control Act CCA
CCA CCA
2006
1991
1992
2003
2004
CCA
CRA CRA CCA
CCA CRA
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CCA
CCA
24 150 3,000
CCA
CRA CCA
CRA

2009
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CCA 33A
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GENT
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GENM

LKT Golden Hope Limited GHL
Genting Hong Kong Limited GENHK
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GENHK
LKT
GENHK
LKT GENM
GHL
LKT
LKT
GENT  GENM GENHK

LKT
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CRA 2019 2019
50 100
150 2,000 3,000
2022
GGR GGR
15 GGR
24 GGR 12
GGR 31 18
GGR 22 RWS
GGR 12 GGR
22 10
2022 RWSPL
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2020 12 31 57%  1,063.7
90%  69.2
2019 90%  0.57
2020  COVID-19
2020
RWS 2020 2020 30
RWS 2020
12 31
2020 2019 /
b
1,063,749 2,480,340 (57)
231,856 1,029,021 an
115,779 863,414 (87)
69,241 688,604 (90)
69,241 688,604 (90)
68,460 688,717 (90)
68,460 688,717 (90)
0.57 5.71 (90)
12 31
2020 2019 /
%
700,816 1,619,667 (57)
299,429 857,866 (65)
63,504 2,807 100
2020 2019 57%  700.8
2020
65 299.4
COVID-19
/
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19

12 31
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2020 2019 /
%
4,693,541 5,116,679 €))
4,094,011 4,133,399 )
8,324,303 8,546,707 €))
7,835,562 8,057,591 €)
8,324,303 8,546,707 €))
2020 12
31 3,994.1
%
12 31
2020 2019 /
%
246,510 1,085,880 an
114,276 (246,412) N.M.
(309,551) (1,105,483) (72)
N.M:
2019 T7% 246.5
2020 2019
2019 246.4
2020 114.3
2020
2020 2019 72% 309.6
2019 25 22 7000

8000

33/217



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2020 12 31 85.69
2020 12 31
490,075 2007
1,802.5 2011
088934
9,026.9 2013
608516
2020 6,253
2020
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€y
2021 26
12,094,026,824
29,221,850
2021 26
12,094,026,824
29,221,850
- 12,094,026,824 -
29,221,850
¢)
®
4
2021 26 15.27%
84.73%
() % %

- 99 606 0.80 12,449 0.00
100 - 1,000 7,888 10.46 4,909,124 0.04
1,001 - 10,000 37,514 49.77 211,694,593 1.75
10,001 - 1,000,000 29,248 38.80 1,473,755,043 12.22
1,000,001 124 0.17 10,374,433,765 85.99

75,380 100.00 12,064,804,974 100.00
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2021 26
%
6,353,685,269 52.66
1,056,149,939 8.75
842,577,170 6.98
469,353,049 3.89
351,007,412 2.91
251,498,680 2.08
205,959,257 1.71
113,016,957 0.94
108,874,100 0.90
81,821,981 0.68
9,833,943,814 81.51
2021 26
%
% %
GOHL 6,353,685,269 52.6630 - -
GENT - - 6,353,685,269 52.6630
142,800 0.0012| 6,353,685,269 52.6630
Kien Huat
Reality Sdn Berhad
KHR
- - 6,353,828,069 52.6642
Kien Huat
International Limited
KHI
- - 6,353,828,069 52.6642
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14,945,063 0.1238 | 6,353,828,069 52.6642
LKT
- - | 6,353,828,069 52.6642
LKT GENT GENT GENT
LKT
LKT
GOHL GENT GENT  GOHL
KHR GENT 20% KHR GOHL
KHR KHI KHI  KHR  GOHL
LKT
KHI KHR
KHR  GOHL
LKT
LKT
2019 12 31 (2)2019
2019 20 0.015 (b)
2020 28 AGM
2020 30 0.025
2020 12 31 @) (b)2021
15 AGM 2021 20
0.01
@

Q)
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PSS
2020
€00
€00
€00
€00
€00
€00
€00
250,000
2020 2020
€)) @
OINIONIO! OO T P
21,250,000
21,500,000
0.1 18.7|81.1 0.1 0.0 100 750,000
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2,750,000
3,000,000
1.0( 81.2{17.0 0.8 0.0 100 27,250,000
250,000
500,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 625,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 625,000
250,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 -
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 625,000
D) 2020
@) PSS 2020
€) 2020
@ 2020 31
C.
Q)
SGXNet
CCA
CCA 138 CRA RWS
CRA
Cap.50
2020
Cap.50
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D.
Q)
SGXNet
www . gentingsingapore.com
SGXNet /
AGM
AGM
Cap.50
SGXNet
AGM AGM
AGM SGXNet AGM
COVID-19 2020 COVID-19
2020
AGM 2020 AGM 2020 AGM
2020 AGM 2020 AGM
/ AGM
2020 AGM
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1951 LKT 1986 10 24 34.5
16 1993 11 6,368,773,132
2005
LKT 1976
GENT

GENM

GENHK
2019

GENHK

LKT GENT GENM  GENHK

LKT 4
1 LKT

LKT

LKT
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31 Coo 16,509,600
2007
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RWS
2006
1982
2004
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Sea
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1961

2018

35

2009

2011

10 2013

2016

2018

2018

CGS-CIMB

2010
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1960 2017 11 1 3.5
12 25 250,000

2020
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40

ASEAN

2020

2010
2009
OBE 2010

52/217



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

ooooooo
1954 2020 31
243,000
RLB
RLB
RLB
40
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©
)C

@)
PwC
ii 2009
iii 2017 12 31

iv

(b)

©

(D

2019 2020

1,796 762 1,524 482

PwC 33 A
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2020 2019
4 1,063,749 88,184,792 2,480,340 205,620,186
(831,893) (68,963,930) (1,451,319) (120,314,345)
231,856 19,220,862 1,029,021 85,305,841
12,204 1,011,712 14,417 1,195,169
45,546 3,775,763 80,073 6,638,052
(131,075)  (10,866,118) (193,806)  (16,066,517)
(17.155)  (1.422,150) (61,682)  (5,113,438)
(25,597)  (2.121,991) (4,609) (382,086)
115,779 9,598,079 863,414 71,577,021
5 (4,047) (335,496) (20,495)  (1,699,036)
1,244 103,128 3,987 330,522
6 112,976 9,365,710 846,906 70,208,507
7 (43,735)  (3,625,632) (158,302)  (13,123,236)
69,241 5,740,079 688,604 57,085,272
69,241 5,740,079 688,604 57,085,272
(781) (64,745) 113 9,368
(781) (64,745) 113 9,368
68,460 5,675,334 688,717 57,094,639
68,460 5,675,334 688,717 57,094,639
2020 2019
8 0.57 0 5.71 5
8 0.57 0 5.71 5
22,820,000 2019

101,128,000
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2020 12 31

2020 2019 2020 2019
9 4,453,307 4,667,062 419 143
10 131,293 152,880 - -
11 63,483 62,239 - -
12 - - 3,215,005 2,218,522
13 111 276 - -
14 37,916 233,251 - -
15 7,431 971 388,896 388,541
4,693,541 5,116,679 3,604,320 2,607,206
16 43,784 48,695 - -
15 56,143 137,454 198,423 413,111
17 3,994,084 3,947,250 2,406,853 3,529,675
4,094,011 4,133,399 2,605,276 3,942,786
18 343,130 489,474 120,922 155,177
19 3,977 3,991 325 56
116,142 209,906 15,288 15,471
463,249 703,371 136,535 170,704
3,630,762 3,430,028 2,468,741 3,772,082
8,324,303 8,546,707 6,073,061 6,379,288
21 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
21 (23,485) (29,541) (23,485) (29,541)
22 19,217 16,774 12,051 9,475
2,312,123 2,542,651 300,684 624,803
7,835,560 8,057,589 5,816,955 6,132,442
2 2 - -
7,835,562 8,057,591 5,816,955 6,132,442
13 225,525 231,382 - -
19 262,792 256,654 256,049 246,789
23 205 263 57 57
18 219 817 - -
488,741 489,116 256,106 246,846
8,324,303 8,546,707 6,073,061 6,379,288
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2020 12 31
2020 2019 2020 2019

9 369,179,150 386,899,440 34,735 11,855
10 10,884,190 12,673,752 - -
11 5,262,741 5,159,613 - -
12 - - 266,523,915 183,915,474
13 9,202 22,880 - -
14 3,143,236 19,336,508 - -
15 616,030 80,496 32,239,478 32,210,049
389,094,549 424,172,689 298,798,128 216,137,377
16 3,629,694 4,036,816 - -
15 4,654,255 11,394,937 16,449,267 34,246,902
17 331,109,564 327,227,025 199,528,114 292,610,058
339,393,512 342,658,777 215,977,380 326,856,959
18 28,445,477 40,577,395 10,024,434 12,864,173
19 329,693 330,854 26,943 4,642
9,628,172 17,401,207 1,267,375 1,282,546
38,403,342 58,309,456 11,318,752 14,151,362
300,990,170 284,349,321 204,658,629 312,705,598
690,084,719 708,522,010 503,456,757 528,842,975
21 458,246,745 458,246,745 458,246,745 458,246,745

21 (1,946,907)  (2,448,949) (1,946,907)  (2,448,949)
22 1,593,089 1,390,565 999,028 785,478
191,674,997 210,785,768 24,926,704 51,796,169
649,567,924 667,974,128 482,225,570 508,379,442
166 166 - -
649,568,090 667,974,294 482,225,570 508,379,442
13 18,696,023 19,181,568 - -
19 21,785,457 21,276,617 21,226,462 20,458,808
23 16,995 21,803 4,725 4,725
18 18,155 67,729 - -
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690,084,719 708,522,010 503,456,757 528,842,975
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OoOoooooo

2020 12 31

2020 5,527,705 (29,541) 9,479 7,295 2,542,651 8,057,589 2 8,057,501
- - - - 69,241 69,241 - 69,241
- - - 78D - 78D - 78D
- - 11,131 - - 11,131 - 11,131
- 6,056 (7,907) - 1,851 - - -
- - - - (301,620) (301,620) - (301,620)
- 6,056 3,224 - (299,769) (290,489) - (290, 489)

2020 12 31 5,527,705 (23,485) 12,703 6,514 2,312,123 7,835,560 2 7,835,562
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2019 5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 7,182 2,273,747 7,781,345 2 7,781,347
- - - - 688,604 688,604 - 688,604
- - - 113 - 113 - 113
- - 9,530 - - 9,530 - 9,530
- 5,808 (8,111) - 2,303 - - -
- - - - (422,003) (422,003) - (422,003)
- 5,808 1,419 - (419,700) (412,473) - (412,473)

2019 12 31 5,527,705 (29,541) 9,479 7,295 2,542,651 8,057,589 2 8,057,591
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EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2020 5,527,705 (29,541) 9,479 0 624,803 6,132,442
- - - - (24,350) (24,350)
- - - (648) - (648)
- - 11,131 - - 11,131
- 6,056 (7,907) - 1,851 -
- - - - (301,620) (301,620)
- 6,056 3,224 - (299,769) (290,489)

2020 12 31 5,527,705 (23.485) 12,703 (652) 300,684 5,816,955
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2019 5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 83) 407,332 5,907,665
- - - - 637,171 637,171
- - - 79 - 79
- - 9,530 - - 9,530
- 5,808 (8,111) - 2,303 -
- - - - (422,003) (422,003)
- 5,808 1,419 - (419,700) (412,473)

2019 12 31 5,527,705 (29,541) 9,479 o) 624,803 6,132,442
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

OoOoooooo

2020 12 31

2020 458,246,745 (2,448,949) 785,809 604,756 210,785,768 667,974,128 166 667,974,294
- - - - 5,740,079 5,740,079 - 5,740,079
- - - (64,745) - (64,745) - (64,745)
- - 922,760 - - 922,760 - 922,760
- 502,042 (655,490) - 153,448 - - -
- - - - (25,004,298) (25,004,298) - (25,004,298)
- 502,042 267,270 - (24,850,850) (24,081,538) - (24,081,538)

2020 12 31 458,246,745 (1,946,907) 1,053,079 540,011 191,674,997 649,567,924 166 649,568,090
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2019 458,246,745 (2,930,432) 668,174 595,388 188,493,626 645,073,501 166 645,073,666
- - - - 57,085,272 57,085,272 - 57,085,272
- - - 9,368 - 9,368 - 9,368
- - 790,037 - - 790,037 - 790,037
- 481,483 (672,402) - 190,919 - - -
- - - - (34,984,049) (34,984,049) - (34,984,049)
- 481,483 117,635 - (34,793,130) (34,194,012) - (34,194,012)

2019 12 31 458,246,745 (2,448,949) 785,809 604,756 210,785,768 667,974,128 166 667,974,294
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2020 458,246,745 (2,448,949) 785,809 (332) 51,796,169 508,379,442
- - - - (2,018,615) (2,018,615)
- - - (53,719) - (53,719)
- - 922,760 - - 922,760
- 502,042 (655,490) - 153,448 -
- - - - (25,004,298) (25,004,298)
- 502,042 267,270 - (24,850,850) (24,081,538)

2020 12 31 458,246,745 (1,946,907) 1,053,079 (54,051) 24,926,704 482,225,570
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2019 458,246,745 (2,930,432) 668,174 (6,881) 33,767,823 489,745,429
- - - - 52,821,476 52,821,476
- - - 6,549 - 6,549
- - 790,037 - - 790,037
- 481,483 (672,402) - 190,919 -
- - - - (34,984,049) (34,984,049)
- 481,483 117,635 - (34,793,130) (34,194,012)

2019 12 31 458,246,745 (2.,448,949) 785,809 (332) 51,796,169 508,379,442
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2020 2019
A 246,510 20,435,679 1,085,880 90,019,452
1,381 114,485 834 69,139
(88,295)  (7,319,656) (171,534)  (14,220,169)
(4,440) (368,076) (75,712)  (6,276,525)
205,630 17,046,727 - -
114,276 9,473,480 (246,412)  (20,427,555)
(3.056) (253,342) (12,529)  (1,038,654)
(301,620) (25,004,298) (422,003)  (34,984,049)
- - (785,000)  (65,076,500)
(4.875) (404,138) (4,802) (398,086)
- - 118,851 9,852,748
(309,551) (25.661,778) (1,105,483)  (91,644,541)
51,235 4,247,382 (266,015)  (22,052,644)
3,947,250 327,227,025 4,214,237 349,360,247
51,235 4,247,382 (266,015)  (22,052,644)
(4,401) (364,843) 972) (80,579)
17 3,094,084 331,109,564 3,947,250 327,227,025
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OooooOodd
2020 2019
112,976 9,365,710 846,906 70,208,507
276,384 22,912,234 363,656 30,147,082
(1,783) (147,811) (862) (71,460)
4,567 378,604 1,281 106,195
20,076 1,664,300 294 24,373
26,027 2,157,638 26,145 2,167,421
379 31,419 8,753 725,624
(22,820)  (1,891,778) 101,128 8,383,511
(8.273) (685,832) (13,551)  (1,123,378)
11,131 922,760 9,530 790,037
3,417 283,269 792 65,657
3,668 304,077 11,742 973,412
5,120 424,448 2,425 201,033
(45,546)  (3,775,763) (80,073)  (6,638,052)
(1,244) (103,128) (3,987) (330,522)
(59) (4,891) (156) (12,932)
271,044 22,469,548 427,117 35,407,999
384,020 31,835,258 1,274,023 105,616,507
1,494 123,853 (682) (56,538)
77,166 6,397,061 (100,987)  (8,371,822)
(138,579)  (11,488,199) 34,895 2,892,796
(59,919)  (4,967,285) (66,774)  (5,535,565)
324,101 26,867,973 1,207,249 100,080,942
65,599 5,438,157 86,116 7,139,016
(143,190)  (11.,870,451) (207,414)  (17,194,621)
- - 7D (5,886)
246,510 20,435,679 1,085,880 90,019,452
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2019

2020

2019
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00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

ooooood
- 13,859 246,786 260,645
- (4.875) - (4.875)
- 3,495 - 3,495
- (1,641) - (1.641)
- (59) 8,825 8,766
- - 379 379
- 10,779 255,990 266,769
776,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
(785,000) (4,802) - (789,802)
- 4,422 - 4,422
- (1,772) - @,772)
- 147) 621 474
8,387 - 366 8,753
- 13,859 246,786 260,645
- 1,148,911 20,458,559 21,607,471
- (404,138) - (404,138)
- 289,736 - 289,736
- (136,039) - (136,039)
- (4,891) 731,593 726,701
- - 31,419 31,419
- 893,579 21,221,571 22,115,150
64,381,218 1,339,498 20,376,737 86,097,453
(65,076,500) (398,086) - (65,474,586)
- 366,584 - 366,584
- (146,899) - (146,899)
- (12,186) 51,481 39,295
695,282 - 30,341 725,624
- 1,148,911 20,458,559 21,607,471
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2020 12 31
1.
SGX-ST
098270
10
2.
2.1
SFRS()s
SFRS(1)s
2020
2020 2020
SFRS(1)s SFRS(1)s
2.2
@

)
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25
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2 5
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@

13

®

2020 12 31 246,528,000

26(d)
2020 2019
700,816 1,619,667
- 112,879 225,348
- 104,537 467,411
- 67,103 139,630
284,519 832,389
16,816 27,495
61,598 789

1,063,749 2,480,340
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Ogoooood
2020 2019
- 7,080
1,724 1,674
1,145 1,615
379 8,753
799 1,373
4,047 20,495
2020 2019
1,235 1,446
33,651 18,860
w
264,913 448,103
33,308 42,872
(59) (156)
1,951 6,855
1,462 1,735
62 61
482 762
(OO 129,665 282,640
276,384 363,656
26,027 26,145
(22,820) 101,128
3,417 792
(1,783) (862)
(8,273) (13,551)
4,567 1,281
20,076 294
954 3,034
1,011 1,324
26,164 50,641
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26,748,000
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31,503 49,281

17,365 25,390

76,354,000



17

99/217

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
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2020 2019

56,586 200,234
(21,652) (31,887)
34,934 168,347
(7,159) 15,519
15,960 (25,564)
8,801 (10,045)
43,735 158,302
112,976 846,906
(1,244) (3,987)
111,732 842,919
18,994 143,296
29,516 26,671
8,801 (10,045)
(1,239) (6,555)
144 (199)
(13,190) (1,050)
315 2,217

682 3,967
43,735 158,302
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2020 2019
69,241 688,604

2020 2019
12,063,667 12,056,144
45,436 11,839
12,109,103 12,067,983

2020 2019
0.57 5.71
0.57 5.71
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

0oooooo
2020
132,445 18,692 3,909,248 1,055,014 2,480,114 25,001 113,294 7,733,808
- - G72) 7 - - - (565)
- 50 3,506 15,604 5,066 216 61,197 85,639
- - (6,891) (3,767) (1,289) () - (11,949)
- - (2,810) (6,618) (3,433) - (1,750) (14,611)
- - 3 11,980 12 - (11,995) -
- - 92 3,159 241 (5 ®) 3,405
132,445 18,742 3,902,576 1,075,379 2,480,711 25,131 160,743 7,795,727
- 6,350 853,844 929,712 1,262,917 13,923 - 3,066,746
- - (375) - - - - 375)
- 744 94,637 50,187 129,153 1,663 - 276,384
- - (6,857) (2,220) (1,289) () - (10,367)
- - (1,870) (6,467) (1,707) - - (10,044)
- - 12,962 921 6,193 - - 20,076
- 7,094 952,341 972,133 1,395,267 15,585 - 3,342,420
132,445 11,648 2,950,235 103,246 1,085,444 9,546 160,743 4,453,307
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

OoOoooooo

2019

132,445 18,192 3,904,042 1,025,560 2,475,417 24,994 17,346 7,597,996
- - (448) [6H) - - - (449)
- 470 5,383 40,692 9,836 82 112,820 169,283
- - - (10,389) - () - (10,394)
- - (958) (19,893) (6,028) (84) - (26,963)
- 30 21 16,821 - - (16,872) -
- - 1,208 2,224 889 14 - 4,335

132,445 18,692 3,909,248 1,055,014 2,480,114 25,001 113,294 7,733,808
- 5,612 735,739 925,147 1,058,672 12,267 - 2,737,437
- - (302) ) - - - (309)
- 738 118,793 32,747 209,710 1,668 - 363,656
- - - (8,646) - )] - (8,650)
- - (680) (19,529) (5,465) (®) - (25,682)
- - 294 - - - - 294
- 6,350 853,844 929,712 1,262,917 13,923 - 3,066,746

132,445 12,342 3,055,404 125,302 1,217,197 11,078 113,294 4,667,062
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2019

ROU
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OooooOodd

379 438 - 817
637 12 - 649

- ® - ®
1,016 444 - 1,460
324 350 - 674
319 50 - 369

- @ - @
643 398 - 1,041
373 46 - 419
379 388 16 783
- 34 - 34
- 16 (16) -
379 438 - 817
- 274 - 274
324 76 - 400
324 350 - 674
55 88 - 143

20
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OooooOodd
10.
2020
1,057 83,049 87,162 24,361 195,629
- - - 4,440 4,440
1,057 83,049 87,162 28,801 200,069
- - 28,591 14,158 42,749
- - 24,404 1,623 26,027
- - 52,995 15,781 68,776
1,057 83,049 34,167 13,020 131,293
2019

1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
- - 72,000 3,712 75,712

- - (66,000) (384) (66,384)
1,057 83,049 87,162 24,361 195,629
- - 70,019 12,969 82,988
- - 24,572 1,573 26,145

- - (66,000) (384) (66,384)
- - 28,591 14,158 42,749
1,057 83,049 58,571 10,203 152,880

26,027,000 2019 26,145,000
CGUs
2020 2019

83,047 83,047
2 2
83,049 83,049
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CGU
RWSPL
25 CcGU
CcGU
2020 2.0 10.2 2019 2.0
9.9 WACC
CGU
CcGU
11.
2020 2019
DCP( ) 63,483 62,239
2008 15  RWSPL
SLM
DCP
DCP RWSPL SLM DCP 80 20

DCP RWSPL  SLM DCP
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Ogoooood
2019
4,986 5,094
62,414 65,795
47 48
67,447 70,937
15,928 7,970
23,747 26,984
39,675 34,954
(3,051) (3,341)
(1,151) (1,329)
(169) -
(4,371) (4,670)
(6,429) (6,813)
(16,968) (16,609)
(23,397) (23,422)
79,354 77,799
13,778 21,170
(4,066) (3,565)
107 209
(528) (526)
1,912 6,061
(357) (1,077)
1,555 4,984
2019
77,799 72,815



DCP
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2020 2019
1,141,005 144,522
1,141,005 144,522
2,074,000 2,074,000
3,215,005 2,218,522
1,000,000,000
12
2020 2019
- 43
- (43)
2020 2019
RWSPL 100% 100%
SGX-ST 712 715
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2019
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2020 2019

111 276
(225,525) (231,382)
(225,414) (231,106)
1,820 (1,199) 621
(230,912) 7,370 (223,542)
(2,014) (479) (2,493)
(232,926) 6,891 (226,035)
(231,106) 5,602 (225,414)
315 1,505 1,820
(287,156) 56,244 (230,912)
(1,716) (298) (2,014)
(288,872) 55,946 (232,926)
(288,557) 57,451 (231,106)
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2020 12 31

26(d)

26(d)
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OooooOodd
233,251 221,131
8,273 13,551
(205, 630) -
2,022 (1,431)
37,916 233,251
- 195,407
37,916 37,844
37,916 233,251

2020 2019 2020 2019

246,528 410,618 - -
- - 120,016 97,171
23,876 24,998 4,063 22,168
1 63 - -
- - 194,409 392,710
270,405 435,679 318,488 512,049
(226,566) (312,389) (120,300) (99,119)
43,839 123,290 198,188 412,930
3,710 4,072 1 1
8,594 10,092 234 180
56,143 137,454 198,423 413,111
- - 127,176 127,175
367 - - -
- - 262,500 262,500
367 - 389,676 389,675
- - (780) (1,134)
367 - 388,896 388,541
7,064 971 - -
7,431 971 388,896 388,541
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456,909,000 2019 655,210,000 388,896,000 2019
388,541,000 12

112/217



16.

17.

71,152,000
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2020 2019

1,287 5,664
16,626 18,471
25,871 24,560
43,784 48,695

35,087,000 2019

2020 2019 2020 2019

3,002,133 3,519,522 2,166,008 3,293,082
991,951 427,728 240,845 236,593
3,994,084 3,947,250 2,406,853 3,529,675
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2020 2019 2020 2019
668 1,317 11 748
132,516 215,889 25,072 15,051
9,588 12,334 - -
4,167 4,601 - -
137,858 181,424 - -
43,639 66,886 1,030 205
66 15 - -
19 59 7 26
- - 94,802 139,147
14,609 6,859 - -
343,130 489,474 120,922 155,177
219 370 - -
- 447 - -
219 817 - -
2020 2019 2019 2020 2019
79,864 70,033 43,360 58,200 58,225
12 31 61,792 79,864 20,854 55,212 58,200
(18,072) 9,831 (22,506) (2,988) (25)
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2020 2019 2020 2019
3,977 3,991 325 56
6,802 9,868 59 3
n 255,990 246,786 255,990 246,786
262,792 256,654 256,049 246,789
266,769 260,645 256,374 246,845
2017 10 24 20,000,000,000 240,240,000

0.669
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20.
@
( ) ROU
2020 2019 2020 2019
736,334 749,868 - -
1,369 1,188 372 54
8,873 11,908 6 4
746,576 762,964 378 58
ROU 3,495,000 2019 909,000
) 643,000 2019 6,000 )
)
2020 2019
ROU
13,533 13,533
1,248 1,162
3,520 4,269
18,301 18,964
1,145 1,615
1,011 1,324
() 7,031,000 2019 7,741,000 )

®
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2020 2019
12,685 16,875
5,640 11,231
1,709 4,860
988 1,416
9 774
36 44
21,067 35,200
21.
2020
12,094,027 5,527,705 (36,792) (29,541)
- - 7,570 6,056
12,004,027 5,527,705 (29,222) (23,485)
2019
12,094,027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,349)
- - 7,240 5,808
12,094,027 5,527,705 (36,792) (29,541)
@
2020 28

10

SGX-ST
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V) 2009

2009
2,043,716,094 2009 23

0.80 2009 2009 23
1,931,564,264 2009
15.5 2009 2009 10
21 1,931,564,264 SGX-ST

2020 12 31 2009

37,832

UK 30,675
22.7 217,817
70,000

322,533

412,271

169,648

284,475

1,545,251

1,545,251

22.

2020 2019 2020 2019

a) 12,703 9,479 12,703 9,479
b 6,514 7,295 (652) )
19,217 16,774 12,051 9,475

€))

PSS

2007 2017
PSS PSS
PSS
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2016 21

2027



PSS
PSS

PSS
208,853,893

2020 12 31

PSS

2020
2019 1.04

420,433,143
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PSS
0.81
2020 2019
12,215,000 7,405,000
48,874,000 12,905,500
(2,357,700) (855, 350)
(7,570,300) (7,240, 150)
51,161,000 12,215,000
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2.5
2019

2019

N 2020 28

2020 12 31
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2020 2019 2020 2019
263 490 57 57
(59) (156) - -
- (71) - -
1 - - _
205 263 57 57
AAA
2020 2019
N
2.0 301,620 241,145
1.5 180,858
2019 12 31 2.5
2020 12 31

121/217
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2020 2019

4,419,224 4,485,538

2019
SDC
45
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2019 :1,954,000

©
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2020 2019 2020 2019
37,916 112,878 - -
787 597 163 545
104,915 78,309 104,344 77,516
143,618 191,784 104,507 78,061
(3.862) (3,828) (514) (994)
(9,207) (11,902) - -
(13,069) (15,730) (514) (994)
130,549 176,054 103,993 77,067
2019
2020 2019 2020 2019
1,305 1,761 1,040 771
(1.305) (1,761) (1,040) @771)
1,000 2019 100
3,792,000
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10 28 2019 20
2020 2019
312,389 239,070
(17,299) 110,021
(68,517) (36,696)
™ ®
226,566 312,389
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2020
18,082 3,440 5,198 219,808 246,528
(1,412) (2,723) (3.847) (218,584) (226,566)
16,670 717 1,351 1,224 19,962
2019
115,137 66,033 55,618 173,830 410,618
(24,262) (58,757) (55,568) (173,802) (312,389)
90,875 7,276 50 28 98,229
SFRS(1)
12
15
2020 2019
100,253 154,795
20,827 (991)
- (51,797)
- (1,754)

121,080 100,253
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©

2020
* 205,272 - 219 -
1,717 258,076 - -
4,863 3,783 4,007 -
211,852 261,859 4,226 -
2019
* 308,050 447 370 -
1,658 1,658 249,165 -
4,956 3,850 8,002 -
314,664 5,955 257,537 -
2020
* 120,922 - - -
1,717 258,076 - -
332 57 2 -
122,971 258,133 2 -
2019
* 155,177 - - -
1,658 1,658 249,165 -
57 2 1 -
156,892 1,660 249,166 -

1271217
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@
2020 2019
266,769 260,645
7,835,560 8,057,589
8,102,329 8,318,234
3% 3%
@

)

)

()

2020
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- - 37,916 37,916
- 195,407 37,844 233,251
2019

37,844 37,994

(7.043) -

7,234 373

(119) (523)

37,916 37,844
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2020 2019 2020 2019
4,042,000 4,074,612 2,993,938 4,331,147
37,916 233,251 - -
472,260 569,512 377,296 402,022
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2020
862 1,260
1,159 1,402
2,021 2,662
(13,778) (21,170)
(49) (540)
(13.827) (21,710)
2020
1,186 1,380
550 535
1,736 1,915
49 66
24,436 16,156
35 29
8,630 2,140
33,150 18,391
34,886 20,306
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3,658 5,538

150 165
2,029 2,148
5,837 7,851
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*

700,816 - - 700,816
284,519 - - 284,519
14,910 61,225 6,133 82,268
- - (3,854) (3,854)
1,000,245 61,225 2,279 1,063,749
EBITDA 445,690 (936) (17,741) 427,013
1,244 - - 1,244
(274,973) - (1,411) (276,384)
(26,027) - - (26,027)
5,989,622 46,687 2,687,649 8,723,958
63,483 - - 63,483
111
8,787,552
83,638 - 2,001 85,639
4,440 - - 4,440
314,495 1,476 27,583 343,554
266,769
116,142
225,525

134/217
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1,619,667 - - 1,619,667
832,389 - - 832,389
25,477 506 6,011 31,994
- - (3,710) (3,710)
2,477,533 506 2,301 2,480,340
EBITDA 1,232,284 (5,523) (37,128) 1,189,633
3,987 - - 3,987
(362,164) - (1,492) (363,656)
(26,145) - - (26,145)
5,155,953 5,817 4,025,793 9,187,563
62,239 - - 62,239
276
9,250,078
169,408 - 3,388 172,79
75,712 - - 75,712
470,473 2,344 17,737 490,554
260,645
209,906
231,382
1,192,487

135/217



EBITDA

EBITDA

136/217

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd

2020 2019
427,013 1,189,633
(11,131) (9,530)
(1,398) (8.,871)
(302,411) (389,801)
45,546 80,073
(4,047) (20,495)
1,244 3,987
(41,840) 1,910
112,976 846,906

2020 2019
1,063,461 2,479,993
288 347
1,063,749 2,480,340
4,651,272 4,878,732
4,242 4,420
4,655,514 4,883,152

10
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29. COvVID-19
2019 CovID-19
2020 2020
30
COVID-19 2020
COVID-19
2021 12 31

30.

2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Revenue

Cost of sales”

Gross profit

Other operating incames
Interast income

Adminisirative axpanses
Selling and distribution expenses
Hher operating expenses
Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of results of joint venture
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Met profit for the financial year

Met profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company

Other comprehensive (loss)/income, may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency exchange differences

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the financial year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Total comprehensive income attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Campany

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company
Basic earnings per share [cents)

Diluted earnings per share (cents)

M

Mote

Group
2020 2019
£'000 $'000
1,063,749 2,480,340
(831,893) (1,451,319
231,856 1,029,021
12,204 14,417
45,546 80,073
(131,075) (193,808)
{17,155) (61,682)
(25,597) [, 08
115,779 g63.414
(4,047) (20,495)
1,244 3,987
112,976 846,908
{43,735) (158,302)
69,241 88,604
69,241 688,604
(781} 113
(T81) 113
68,460 688,717
68,460 E88,717
Group
2020 2019
0.57 5.71
0.57 5.T1

amaunting 1o 522,820,000 (2019: net impairmant on trade receivablas amounting 1o $101,128,000).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statements.

Included in cost of sales for the year endad 31 Decambear 2020 is nel reversal of imparment an rade receivables (Nole 8)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2019
Note 5000 £'000 S'000 £'000
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 4,453,307 4 667,062 419 143
Intangible assets 10 131,293 152 880 - -
Interests in joint venture 11 63,483 62,230 - -
Interests in subsidiaries 12 - - 3,215,005 2,218,522
Deferred tax assets i3 111 276 - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 14 37,916 233,251 - -
Trade and othar receivables 15 7,431 a7 388,896 388,541
4,603,541 5.116,679 3,604,320 2,807 206
Current assets
Invantories 16 43,784 48,6885 - -
Trade and other recaivables 15 56,143 137,454 198,423 413,111
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3,994,084 3,947,250 2,406,853 3,520,675
4,094,011 4,133,380 2,605,276 3,942,786
Less: Current liabilities
Trade and other payables i8 343,130 480,474 120,922 165,177
Baorrowings 19 3,977 3,091 325 56
Income tax liabilities 116,142 209,206 15,288 15,471
463,249 703,371 136,535 170,704
Met current assets 3,630,762 3,430,028 2,468,741 3,772,082
Total assets less current liabilities 8,324,303 8,546,707 6,073,081 6,379,288
Equity
Share capital 21 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
Treasury shares 21 [23,485) (29,541) {23,485) (29,541}
Mher resarves 22 19,217 16,774 12,051 0,475
Ratained eamings 2,312,123 2,542 651 300,684 B24,803
Attributable to ordinary shareholders 7,835,560 8,057,580 5,816,955 6,132,442
Mon-controlling interasts 2 2 - -
Total equity 7,835,562 8.057.591 5,816,955 6,132 442
MNeon-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 13 225,525 231,382 = -
Borrowings 19 262,792 256,654 256,049 246,789
Provisicn for retirement gratuities 23 205 263 57 &7
Oither payables i8 219 817 - -
488,741 489,116 256,106 246,846
Total equity and non-current liabilities 8,324,303 8,546,707 6,073,061 6,379,288

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statements.

50 | GENTING SINGAPORE AMMUAL REPORT 2020
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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MNet cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Property, plant and equipment:
= Proceads from disposals
- Purchases

Additions of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair valug through

profit or loss

Met cash generated from/{used in} investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Repayment of bank borrowings

Feapaymant of leasa liabilities

Restricted cash (deposit released as security for [can
repayments and interast)

Met cash used in financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of financial year
Met inflow/outfiow)
Effects of exchange rate changes

End of financial year

Group

2020 2019

Mote 5000 $'000
A 246,510 1,085,880
1,381 534
(88,295) (171,534)
(4,440) (75,712)
205,630 -
114,276 (245,412)
(3,056) {12,529)
(301,620} [422,003)
- (785,000)
(4,875) (4,802)

- 118,851

[308,561)  (1.105.483)
51,235 [266.015)
3,947 250 4,214,237
51,235 (266,015)
(4,401) [a72)
17 3,994 084 3,947,250

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statemeants.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Hote A - Net cash generated from operating activities

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Profit before taxation for the financial year 112,976 846,906
Adjustments for:
Property, plant and equipment;
= Depreciation 276,384 363,656
- Mat gain on dizsposals {1,783) [BE2)
= Written off 4,567 1.281
— Impairment 20,076 294
Amortization of:
- Intangible assats 26,027 26,145
= Barrowing costs 379 B, 753
Met (reverzal of impalrmentlimpairment on trade receivables {22,820) 101,128
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,273) {13,651}
Share-based payment 11,131 9,530
Irventory write-down 3,417 T2
Finance charges 3,668 11,742
Unrealisad foreign exchange loss 5,120 2425
Intarest income (45,546) (80,073}
Share of results of joint venture {1,244) {3,987}
Write-back of retirement gratuities [59) [156)
271,044 427 117
Cperating cash flows before movements in working capital 384,020 1,274,023
Changes in working capital:
Decreasas(increasa) in inventories 1,494 (B82)
Decreasa/increass) in trade and other receivables 77,166 (100,987)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payvables (138,579) 34,895
(59,919) {66,774}
Cash generated from operating activities 324,101 1,207,249
Interest receivad 65,599 86,116
Met taxation paid {143,190) (207 .414)
Reatiremeant gratuities paid - {71}
Met cash generated from operating activities 246,510 1,085 880

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statemeants.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising frem financing activities

Group

2020

Beginning of financial year
Principal payments

Mon-cash changes

= Additions

- Disposals

- Forgign exchange movemeant

- Amortisation of borrowing costs

End of financial year

2019

Beginning of financial year
Principal payments

Mon-cash changes

- Additions

= Disposals

- Foreign exchangsa movement

= Amortisation of borrowing costs

End of financial year

Bank Lease
berrowings liabilities Bonds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- 13,859 246,786 260,645
- {4,875) - (4,875)
- 3,495 - 3,495
- {1,641} - {1,641}
- (59) 8,825 8,766
- - 379 379
- 10,779 255,990 266,769
TTE,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
(785,000) (4,802 - (788,802)
- 4,422 - 4,422
- (1.772) - {1,772)
- (147) 621 474
8,387 - 366 8,753
= 13,859 246, TBE 280,645

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statemeants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. GENERAL

Genting Singapore Limited is listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securitios Trading Limited
[*SGH-ST").

The address of the Company's registered office is 10 Sentosa Gateway, Resorts World Sentosa, Singapore
C98270,

The Company's principal activity is that of an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company’'s subsidiaries include the development and operation of integrated resort, operation of casinos,
provision of sales and marketing support services to leisure and hospitality related busingessas and investments,

2. SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
{International) {“SFRS{l)s") under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting
policles balow,

The praparation of financial statements in conformity with SFRS(l)s reqguires management 1o axarciss its
judgement in the process of applying the Group™s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain
critical accounting astimates and azsumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
dizclosed in Mote 3.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2020

On 1 January 2020, the Group and the Company have adopted the new or amended SFRS{)s that are
aeffective for financial year Beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The adoption of the new SFRS(l)s did
not result in any significant changes to the accounting poficies and had no material effect on tha amounts

reported for the current or prior financial years.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective that would be expected o have a material impact
on the Group and the Company in the current or foreseeable future reporting periods.

2.2  Group accounting
[a) Subsidiaries
I Consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has
control, The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power over the enfity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2,  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Group accounting (Continued)
(a)  Subsidiaries (Continued)
] Congolidation {Continued)

Subsidiaries are consclidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group
and are deconsolidated from the date that contral ceases. All intercompany fransactions,
balances and unraalised gaing on fransactions betweaean the Group entities are eliminated.
Urnrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairmant indicator of the transferred asset. Where necessary, accounting policies of the
subsidiaries have been changed o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controliing interasts are that parnt of the net results of operations and of net assats of
a subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirecily by the
aquity holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statemnent
of comprahensive income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of financial
position. Total comprahensive incomea is attributed to the non-controlling interasts basad on
their respactive interests in a subsidiary, evan if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance,

) Acquisitions

The acquisition method of accounting is used 1o account for business combinations by
the Group. Under this method, the cost of an acqguisition of a subsidiary or business is
meazurad as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition, The cost of acquisition also incliudes the
fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement.

if the business combination is achieved in stages, previously held equity interest in the
acquireg is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain
or loss s recognised in the profit or loss.

Acquisition-related costs are expensad as incurred.

Identifiable assats acquirad and labilities and contingant liabilities assumead in a businass
combination are measurad initially at their fair values at the acguisition datea.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree at the date of acquisition either at fair value or at the non-controlling interast’s
proportionate share of the acquires's identifiable net assats,

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (see accounting policy note on
intangible assets). If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2  Group accounting (Continued)
[a) Subsidiaries (Continued)
[} Disposzals

Whean a change in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control
over the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are
derecognised. The profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any ratained
interest; and i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and the
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controling intarests. Amounts pravicusly recognisad
in other comprahensive income in respect of that entity are also reclassified o profit or loss
or transferred to retained eamings if required by a specific standard.

Any retained equity interast in the entity is remeasured at fair valua, The difference bebweean
the carrying amount of the retained interast at the date when control is lost and its fair
value is recognisad in profit or loss.

(b}  Joint venture

The Group's interests in joint venture iz accountaed for in the consclidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Equity accounting involves recognising the Group's share
of the post-acquisition results of joint wenture in profit or loss and its share of post-acquigition
movemeants within reserve is recognisad in other comprehensive income. These post-acguisition
movamants and distributions are adjusted against the carrying amount of the invastmeant.

The Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale of assats by the Group to the joint
venture that is attributable to the other venturer, The Group doss not recognise its share of profits
or losses from joint venture that results from the purchase of assets by the Group from the joint
venture, until it resslls the assets to an independent party. However, if a loss on the transaction
provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impalrment
loss, the loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Where necessary, in applying the equity method, adjustments have been made to the finansial
statements of joint vanture to enswe consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

() Transactions with non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as ransactions with equity owners of the Company, Any
difference between the changea in tha carrying amounts of tha non-contralling interest and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised within equily attributable to the equity
holdars of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
sarvices in the ordinary courss of the Group's activities. Revenus attributable to the award of benefits
measured at fair value is deferred until thay are utilised. Revenue is shown as net of goods and services
tax, and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Gaming revenue reprezants nat house takings, which is the aggregate of wins and loszes arising from
gaming play, and is reported after deduction of goods and services tax, commissions, discounts and
loyalty points awarded to customers. Complimentary goods or services provided by the Group is allocated
to the appropriate revenue type based on the goods and services provided, at the standalone selling
price of each good and service.

Hotel room revenue is recognised at the time of rcom occupancy.

Attraction revenue Is recognised when tickets are used. Revenus from annual passes is amortisaed over
the period of their validity.

Food and beverage, retail sales and other hospitality and support services are recognised when goods
are deliverad or sarvices are rendered (o the customars.

Rantal income from ratail outlets, mat of any incentives given to the lessee, is recognized on a straight-
ling basis over the period of the respective leass terms.,

2.4  Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method,
2,5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment except for freehold land is initially recognised at cost and is
subsaguently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including
borrowing costs and realized gains of losses on qualifying cash flow hedges incurrad specifically for the
construction or developmeant of the asset, Dapraciation is calculated using the straight-line method 1o
allocate the depreciable amounts of proparty, plant and equipmeant less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Freehold properties and improvemants 25 years
Leasahold land, properties and improvemeants 30-90 yaars
Machinery, computer equipment, fixtures, fittings and motor vehicles 2-5 years
Public attracticns, theme park equipment, mechanical and electrical system 10-35 yaars
Exhikit animals 5-15 years

Freshold land is stated at cost and is not depreciated, Leasshold land is depreciated over the lsass
period of 60 to 989 years. Leasehold properties and improvemeants are depreciated over 30 to 80 years.

GENTING SINGAPORE ARIMUAL REPORT 2020 | 61

150/217



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5  Property, plant and equipment [Continuad)

The depreciation of leasehold land is capitalised during the period of construction as part of construction-
in-progress in property, plant and equipment until the constrection is completed.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoctated with the itemn will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss during the financlal year that they are incurred.

Construction-in-progress consists of assets and property under construction. Assets include acquired
computer hardware, computer software licence and implamentation cost incurrad in bringing the computer
system to use.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost and is not depreciated. Costs include borrowing costs and
othar directly related expenditure incurred during the period of construction and up 1o the complation
of the construction, Construction-in-progress redating to assets and property under construction is
reclassified to the respective categories of property, plant and egquipment vpon complation of the project.

For majer construction-in-progress, the cost s supported by qualified quantity surveyors' cartification
of work dong.

The assets' residual values and uselul lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date,

Where an indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is assessed and if it
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets is written down
immediately to its recoverabls amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assets).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceads with canying amount and are
included in profit or loss.

2.6 Intangible assets
[a) Goodwill on acquisition

Goodwill on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net identifiable assats of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill en acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets,

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is tested at least annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumnulated impairmeant losses. Impalrmant loszes on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
aentity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-genarating units (*CGUs") for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those CGUS or groups of CGUs that are expected to banefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
(b} Trademarks and tradenames

Trademarks and tradenames are initially recognised at cost and are subsaquently carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses, Trademarks and tradenames have an indefinite useatul
lite as it is maintained through continuouws marketing and upgrading. Trademarks and tradenames
are testad annually for impairmant. Where an indication of impairmeant exists, the carrying amount
of trademarks and tradenames are assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assats).

() Licences

Casing and theme park licences are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Such cost is amortised using
the stralght-line method over 3 to 35 years, which s the shorter of its economic usefd life and
periods of contractual right. The amortisation period and amortisation method are reviewed at
aach reporting date. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when changes
arise. Amortisation is recogrisad in profit or loss unless the amount can be capitalised as part of
consiruction-in-progress. Whera an indication of impainment exists, the carrying amount of licence
i3 assessad and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

(d} Computer software
Computer software that does not form an integral part of other related hardware is treated as an

intangible assat. Costs that are directly associated with davelopment and acquisition of computer
software programmes by the Group are capitalised as intangible assats whan the following criteria

are met:

. it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

. management intends to complete the software product and use or sall i;

. there is an ability to use or sall the software product:

. it can be demonstratad how the software product will ganarate probable fulure economic
benefits;

* adequate technical, financial and other resources 1o complats the development and to use
or sall the software product are available; and

. the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measurad.

Direct costs include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate partion
of melevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognisad as an expanse when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
[} Computer software (Continued)

Expenditure that enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes beyond
their ariginal specifications is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost
of the software.

Computer software are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairmant losses. These costs are amaortised to profit or loss using the straight-fine
method over their estimated wseful life of 10 years,

2.7  Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company's
staternent of financial position. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the differences between
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investments are recognisad in profit or less. Wheare
an indication of iImpalrment exists, the camying amount of the investment 13 assessed and written down
immeadiately to its recoverable amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of nan-financial assats),

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, including goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested at least anmually for impairmeant. Assets that are subject to amortisation and depreciation, and
imvestments in subsidiaries and joint venture are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not ba recoverable. An impairment l0ss is recogrsed
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceads its recoverable amount, The recoverable
amount i the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sall and value in usa. For the purposes of
assassing impairmeant, assets are groupad at the lowest levels for which there are separataly identifiabla
cash flows (cash-generating units or CGUs). Mon-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Irmpairmeant is chargad 1o profit or loss, Impairment 15 reversed only 1o the axtent that the ravarsal does
not excesd the carrving amount that would have bean determined (net of any accumulated amortisation
or depraciation) had no impairmeant been recognised in prior yaars for the same assal, The reversal is
recognisad in profit or loss. Impairment on goodwill is not reversed once recognisad.

29 Financial assets
[a) Classification and measurement

The Group classifies its financial assats in the following categories: amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss, The classification depends on the Group's business modsl for managing the
financial assats as well as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset. Financial
assals with embedded denvatives are considerad in their antirety whan determining winather their
cash flows are soclely payment of principal and interest. The Group reclassifies debt instruments
when and only when its business madel for managing those assets changes,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(s} Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are darecognisad when tha rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have besn transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of cwnership.

Cn disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the camrying amount and the sale
proceeds is recognised in profit or loss, Any amount pravicusly recognised in other comprehensive
incomea relating to that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.

e}  Initial recognition

At Initlal recognition, the Group measures a financlal asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial assat not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assat. Transaction costs of financial assats carried at falr valua
through profit or loss are expansed in profit or loss,

(d} Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recsivables,
quoted and unquoted debt sacurities.

Dabt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or
loss on a dabt instrumeant that is subseguently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit o loss when the asset is derscognisad or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest income using the effective
interest rate method.

Debt instruments that are hald for trading as well as those that do not meet the criteria for
classification as amortizsed cost or fair value through other comprahansive income ara classified as
financial assats at fair value through profit or loss, Movemeant in fair values and interast income is
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it arises and presanted in other gains and losses.

() Impairmeant

The Group asseszes on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
dabt financial assats carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends an
the level of credit risk, which is set out in Note 26(d). For trade receivables, the Group measures
the loss alowances at an amount equal 1o litstime expected credit losses,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2,10 Inventories

Inwentories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Cost of inventories comprisas all cost of purchase and othar costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variabla salling expanses.

211 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised as a receivable at their fair value when thera is reasonable
asswrance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with &l the attached conditions.

Approved governement grants relating to qualifying expendilure are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate,
unless they are directly attributable to the construction of an item of property, plant and equipment, in
which case, thay are set off against the assat.

Governmeant grants ralating to expenses are presentad as a deduction of the ralated axpeanse.
2,12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash and bank balances (et of bank overdrafts), deposits hald at call
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investmeants with original maturities of 12 months or l8ss.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest mathod.

2.14 Employee benefits
[a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term emploves benafits include wages, sataries, bonus and paid annual lsave. These banafits
are recognised as an expansa in profit or loss whan incurred and are measwrad on an undiscountad
basis, unlazs thay can be capitalised as part of the cost of a salf-congtructad asset.

(b} Defined conftribution plans

The Group contributes to defined confribution plans for some of its employees undar which the
Group pays fixed contributions into the employees provident funds in certain countries in which
it operatas on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further confributions it those funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all
emplovesas the benefits relating to services provided in the current and prior pericds. The Group's
contributions to such plans are recognised in profit or loss as employes benefits expense when
they are due, unless they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a self-constructed asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
() Long-term employee benefits

The Group provides retirement gratuities under a retirement gratuity scheme that was established
in 1981 by the Board of Directors of the ultimate holding corporation for certain executives and
executive directors of the Company and certain subsidiaries. The level of retirement gratuities
payable iz in relation to the past services rendered. The grafuity is calculated bazad on employeas”
basic salary for each completed year of service. Such benefils vest on the employees when they
reach ratiremant age.

The present value of the retirement gratuities is determined by discounting the amount payable by
reference to market yiglds at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds or government
bond which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Employes
turnover is also factored in arriving at the level of provision for retirement gratuities. The diffsrences
arising from the application of such discounting as well as any past service costs and the effects of
any curtaiments or setllements, if any, are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Such relirement
gratuities payable are classified as current liakilities where it is probable that a payment will ba
made within the next 12 months,

(d} Share-based compensation benefits

The Group operates equity-setiied, share-based compeansation plans, where shares are issued by
the Company to eligible executives and directors of the Group. The value of the employee sarvices
received in exchange for the grant of the shares is recognised as an expense in profit or loss with
a corresponding entry to resarves over thea vesting period. The total amount (o be expensad over
the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the shares granted at the grant
data and the number of shares vested by vesting date, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions, Non-market vesting conditions are included in the astimates of the number of
shares that are expected to become vastad.

The fair value of senices recelved from the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in
exchange for the grant of the shares are assantially sarvices renderad in the past, are charged
out to profit or loss immediately, unfess they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a zalf-
construstad asset. Belore the and of the vesting period, at each reparting date, the Company will
revise its estimates of the number of shares that are expected to be vested at the vesting date
and it recognises the impact of this revision in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
egquity. After tha vesting date, no adjustment to profit or lozs iz made. For performance shares that
are expectad to be gramed, dus to services raceived befors grant date, the total amount to be
recognised over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the performance
shares at the end of the reporting period, until the date of grant has been established. Lpon
vesting of shares, reserves relating to the vested shares will be transferred to retained earnings.

Where the terms of a share-based compensation plan are modified, the expense that has yet to
be recognised tor the award, is recogrised over the remaining vesting period as if the terms had
not been modified. Additional expense is recognised for any increase in the total fair value of the
share due to the modification, as measured at the date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
(&) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw tha offar of thosa banafits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs that is within the scope of SFRS(l) 1-37 Frovisions, Contingent Liabifities and Confingent
Assafs and involvas the payment of tarmination banafits.

2.15 Provisions

Provizions ara recognised whan the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, It is more likely than net that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognisad for future operaling losses.

Prasent obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract ks considerad to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations undar the confract exceed the economic benafits received under it,

2,16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right o defer
sattlement of the Bability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which casa they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsagquently stated at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the bBorrowings using the elfective interest meathod,

Borrowing costs including commitment fees on credit faciliies, amortisation of transaction costs and
interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss unless they are directly attributable to the construction-
in-progress, in which case, thay are capitalised as part of the cost of the sell-constructed asseal during
tha construction pericd.

217 Leases
(a) When the Group is the lessee
At the inception of the contract, the Group assesses if the contract contains a lease. A contract
contains a leass if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assat for a

period of time in exchange for consideration. Reassassmant is only required whan the terms and
conditions of the contract are changed,
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.17 Leases (Continued)
(a) When the Group is the lessee (Continued)
. Right-of-usa ("AOL") assets

The Group recognisas a AOU asset and leasa liability at the date which the underlying
assel is available for use, ROU assets are measured at cost which comprises the initial
meazurament of lease liabilities adjusted for any lease paymeants made at or bafore the
commencement date and leass intantive received, Any initial direct costs that would not
have been incurred if the lease had not been obtained are added to the carrying amount
of the ROU assels.

These ROU assets are subsaquently depreciated using the straight-line method fram the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROLU asset or the
end of the leassa term.

ROU assets are presented within "Property, plant and equipment®.
. Leasze liabilties

The initial measurement of lease liability i measured at the presant walue of the lease
payments discounted using the implicit rate in the lease, if the rate can be readiy
determinad. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall use its incremental
bBorrowing rate.

Leaze paymants include fixed payment (incleding in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivables.

Leasze llability Is measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest method and ghall
be remeasured whan:

- There iz a change in future lease payments ariging from changes in the leasa's
implicit rate;

- There is a change in the Group’s assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
option; or

- Thare are modifications in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not
part of the original tarm.

Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the ROLU asset, or is
recardead in profit or loss if the carrying amaount of the ROU asset has been reduced fo Zero,

. Short-term and low value leases
Lease payments relating to short-term leases that have lease terms of 12 months or less

and leases of low value leases, except for sublease arrangements, are expensed to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the leass term.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
217 Leases [Gontinued)
() When the Group is the lessor

Leases whera the Group retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leasaes, Rantal income from operating leases (net of any incentives given o the lessees)
iz racognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease tarm.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in nagotiating and arranging operating leases are added
to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognized as an expense in profit or loss ovar
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Lease incantives are recognised as other receivables where such incentives are provided by the
Group and recognised nat of lease income in profit of loss over the lease term on the same bagis
as the lease income. Contingent rents are recognised as income in profit or loss whan eamed.

2,18 Income tax

The tax expense for the period comprisas current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss,
axcept to the extent that it arises from a trangaction or event which is recognisad, in the same or diffarent
parind, in other comprehensive income or directly in edquity, Tax relating to fransactions or évants
recognised in other comprehensive income or dinectly in equity is alzo recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in eguity respectivaly.

{a) Current tax

Current tax is calculated according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and includes all taxes based upon the taxable income and is measured
using the tax rates and tax laws which are applicable at the reporting date.

(b} Deferred tax

Defarred tax is recognisad for all temporary differances arising between the tax bases of assats
and liakilities and theair carrying amounts in the financial staterments. However, it the defarred
tax arizsas from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a businass
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss, it is not accounted for.

Deferrad tax is delermined using lax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expectad to apply when the relatad defarred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred fax lability is setiled; and basad on the tax consequances that
will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the same reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets or liabilities.

Deferred tax assels are recognised fo the extant that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised,

Deferrad tax is provided on tamporary differancas ansing on invastmants in subsidiarias and joint
venture, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the tamporary difference will not reverse in the foreseaable future.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.19 Share capital and treasury shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assats to another parson or enfity or 1o exchangs financial assets or liabiities with another person
or entity that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer,

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, nat of tax, from the proceads. The proceads received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital.

When shares recognised as equily are acquired, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
transaction costs, are recorded in the treasury shares account.

When the Company purchases its own ordinary shares (“treasury shares®), they are presented as a
deduction from total equity until they are cancelled, sold or reissued.

When treasury shares are subseguantly sold or reissued pursuant to equity compensation plans, the cost
of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury shares account and the realized gain or loss on sale of
reissus, nat of any dirsctly attributable incremental transaction costs, is recognisad in equity,

2.20 Foreign currency translation
[a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environmeant in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consclidated financial statements are presented in the lunctional currency of the
Company which is Singapore Dollars ("87).

{b)  Transactions and balances

Fereign currency transactions of each entity in the Group are franslated into the functicnal currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Forgign exchange gains and
losses rasulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the closing
rates al the reporting date of monatary assets and liabilities denominated in forgign currencies
are recognisad in profit or loss.

Non-monaetary items measwad at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair values are detarminad,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
() Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The results and financial position of &l the Group entities [none of which has the currency of a
hyparinflationary economy) that have a functicnal currancy differant from the presantation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows;

i aszsats and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the reparting date;

(i) income and expensas are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates pravailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expensas are translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

{Jii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprahensive income and
accumulated in the currency translation reserve, These currency translation differences are
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the entity giving rise to such
resarve,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assats and labilities of the foreign operations and franslated at the closing rate at the reporting
date.

2,21 Dividend distribution

Dividand distribution to the Company’s sharaholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved for payment,

2,22 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief
oparating decision-maker. Tha chiaf operating decision-maker, wha is responzible for allocating resowces,
making strategic decisions and assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as
the Executive Chairman, and President and Chisl Operating Officer of the Group and of the Company.

2,23 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group does not recognise a contingant liability but discloses its existence in the financial statemeants.
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by uncertain future events beyond the control or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources coours so that outfiow is probable, it will then be
recognisad as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible assel that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by uncertain future events beyond the contral of the Group. The Group does not recognise contingent
assets but discloses their existence where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, but not virtually
certain. When an inflow of economic resources is virtually certain, the asset is recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future avents that are believed 1o ba reasonabls under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will
not nacessanly equal the related actual results,

{a) Taxation

The Group is subject I income taxas in numearous jurisdictions in which the Group operates, mainiy in
Singapore. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes that includes
the estimate of the amount of the taxability of cartain income and the deductibility of cerfain expenses.

Where the final tax outcomea of tax liabilitias is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax liabiliies and deferred tax assets and liabilities (MNotes 7 and
13), where applicable, in the period in which such determination is made.

53] Impairment of trade receivables
Ag at 31 December 2020, tha Group's trade recelvables amounted to $246,528,000, majority of which are
related to casing debtors, Trade receivables are groupad based on shared cradit risk characteristics and
days past dua, with expected loss rates assessed based on tha Group's hislorical credil loss experiance,
Tha Group further evaluates the expected credit [oss on customers on a case-by-case basis, which will
be assessed based on indicators such as changes in financial capability of the debtor, and dafault or

significant delay in paymants.

Tha Group's craedit risk exposure for tfrade raceivables is set out in Note 26(d).

REVENUE
Group
2020 2019
$'000 £'000
Gaming TO00,816 1,619,667
Mon-gaming
- Hotel rooms 112,879 225,348
- Attractions 104,537 467,411
= Other non-gaming 67,103 139,630
284,519 832,389
Rantal incomea 16,816 27,495
Hospitality and support sarvices and others 61,508 7839

1,063,749 2,480,340
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

5. FIMANCE COSTS

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Interest expensa;
- Bank borrowings - 7080
- Bonds 1,724 1,674
- Laass liabilities 1,145 1,615
Amortisation of borrowing costs 379 8,753
Othars 799 1,373
4,047 20,495
6, PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Imncluded in the profit before taxation are the following expenses/fiincome) by nature:
Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Directors' remuneration:
- Faes and meating allowancas 1,235 1,446
= Other emoluments 33,651 18,860
Employee benefits (excluding directors” remunaration)™:
- Salaries and related costs 264,913 448,103
- Employer's contribution to defined contribution plan 33,308 42,872
= Write-back of retiramant gratuities (59) (156)
- Share-based payrment 1,951 6,855
Auditors” remuneration:
= PricewaterhouseCoopers Singapore 1,462 1,736
- Other auditors 62 &1
Mon-audit fees paid/payable to auditors 482 g2
Duties and taxes™" = 129,665 282,640
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 276,384 363,658
Amarisation of intangible assals 26,027 28,145
Met (reversal of impairment)impairment on trade receivables (22,820) 101,128
Imventory write-down 3417 T2
Inciuded in other operating income;
= Gain on disposal of property, plant and egquipment {1,783) (BE2)
= Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (8,273) (13,651)
Imciudad in ather oparating expensas:
- Write-off of property, plant and equipment 4,567 1,281
= Impairment of proparty, plant and eguipment 20,076 294
- Net forelgn exchangs loss 954 3,034
Rantal expanses on oparating leases 1,011 1,324
Advertising and promation 26,164 20,641
LUtilities 31,503 49,281
Legal, professional and management fees 17,365 25,390

The Group has recognised grant income of 576,354,000 and $26, 748,000 retating mainky to the Jobs Support Schame
and propedy lax rebatles respactivaly and thess have bean sal off against the qualiying employes compensation and
property 1ax axpanses.

Includes property tax and casino tax thal is levied on the casing’s gross gaming revenus.
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TAXATION
Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Taxation for current financial year:
- Current tax 56,586 200,234
= Deterred tax (21,652) [31,887)
34,934 168,347
[Over)/under provision in prior financial years:
— Currant tax (7,159) 15,519
= Deterred tax 15,960 (25,564)
&,801 (10,045)
Total tax expense 43,735 158,302
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before taxation 112,976 846,908
Share of results of joint venture, net of tax {1.244) 13,987)
Profit before taxation and share of results of joint venture 111,732 842,918
Tax calculated at tax rate of 17% 18,994 143,296
Tax effacts of:
- Expensas not deductible for lax purposes 29,516 26,671
= Under/{over) provision in prior financial years 8,801 (10,045)
= Differant tax ratas in other countries (1,239) 6,555)
= Tax incentives (144) (194
- Incoma not subject to tax (13,190) (1,050
= Deferred tax assets not recognised 315 2,217
= Withhaolding tax G2 3,967
Total tax expense 43,735 158,302
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted eamings per ordinary share have been calculated basaed on Group's net profit attributable
to ardinary sharaholders divided by the walghted average number of ordinary shares cutatanding.

Group
2020 2019
$'000 £'000
Met profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 69,241 688,604
Group
2020 2019
000 000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,083,667 12,058,144
Adjustment for:

- Share-based compensation plans 45,436 11,839
Adjusted weighled average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,109,103 12,067,983
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company is as follows:

Group
2020 2019
Basic garnings per shara (cents) 0.57 £.71
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 0.57 5.71

76 | GENTING SINGAPORE AMMUAL REFORT 2020

165/217



EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

oOoOooodn

LOB'ESTH'Y ErL'09L ars's i SR0'L GYZ'e0L GEZ'056'S ara'Ll ShH'ZEL Jeah [@ipueuly jo pug
aryea yood Jay
0ZFErE'E - 685’51 L9Z'S6E'L EEL'ELE LEEGE 60 L o IESA EoueU) o pul
a.0'02 - - £6l'g LZ6 ZOB'ZL = = JusluEdw)
rro'oL) - - (oLt {Lar'al (oL’ - - Ho USTILAL
(2ag'oL) - (8] (6az' L) (ozz'2) {z58'a) - - sEsodsi
¥ac'ole - £09'L £51L'621 181'0G 1E9'vE L - uoiereideg
5.8 - - - = (5L8) - - saausEp abusyoxg
arL'990'E - EZE'EL LGz’ FANN Fra'ese 0s5e'a - Jead EroueUy o Buuwbeg
jusuiyeduly pue ueleEaasdap PejEINWNaaY
LZISELL £FL'001 LEL'SE LLlDeb'E BLE'GLD'L 0.G'Z06'E Zhl'gl ChE'ZEL JEal eoueyy Jo pug
SOF'E ] irgl [T B5L'E z6 - - jusunsnlpe 200
- (Gea'LL) - ZL 088'LL £ - - uolEyIEseDaY
(LLa'FL) (o521 = (EEF'E) (grLa‘al (oLa'zl - = Jhe UsiiAL
letra'LL) - iz (6az' L) {zal'e) {Lea'al - - s[esodsi
&e0'se I6L'L9 alg 900's +09'5L 905'e 05 - SUolIpDY
(5ag) - - - L (Z45) - - sHoUREYIP abusyoxg
BOF'EEL'L PEEELL LOO'SE FLL'0gr'eE FLO'GSO"L BPEGO6'E 9B SHP'EEL seah Ry jo Buuwbeg
1805
0005 000.5 0005 000.% 000.5 000.5 000.5 0Z0Z
[T sgoBosd-un  sjewue  walshs [END00 SO|DNBA sjuspacsdw)  sjuawwsacdug dnoin
-UDHONIEUSS  JQIxs3 PUB [E3JUELDSawW oo pue pue seipedosd  pue serpedosd  ploysely
quswdinba sBugy ‘saunjxly  ‘pue| ployases ployasdy

yaed auwsay waswdnba

‘guonseIpE Jondwos

aljgng ‘fusuiyoew

LNIWLINDI ANV LNYTd ‘ALYIH0Hd ‘G

0202 H3EW303A 12 J3ANT Hy3IA THIDNYNIS IHL HOA

SIN3INW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL1 S31ON

rMUAL REPORT 2020 | 777

GENTIMNG SINGAPORE

166/217



EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

oOoOooodn

2907499 S el BIO'LE LBLLLEL 20E'521 FOF'GS0'E ZYE'ZE SFY'EEL Jead [ejoueuy jo pug
anjeA yooq jay
980T - £2EEl L1g' 298’ cli'Ges FrE'CS0 05e'y - Eah RIouRlg Jo pul
tE2 = = = = reZ = - JusluiEdL|
(2g9'g2l - lgh [59K'5) G258l loag) = = JIC LN,
059°8) - (%) - lora'el = - - sEsods|]
959°E9E = £99') (8] ¥ ivi'Ee £ELEL gEL - uoheDeIda]
{Bos) B - - (2 (2oe) - - ssousisylp sbueyog
LIS - 18221 o850 L¥L'SEE GELSEL 21e's = Jeah eroueuy jo Guuwbag
Juswyeduy pue uenesasdop pejenwnIsy
20a'eed’ PEZ'ELL Loo'se rLL0ERE FLO'SSO'L 8r2'E0B'E B9l Sy 2L Tead gisuRUy o pug
Sey - 14 68 ¥Z2'E /02" - - juswsnipe 1200
- lgig'al) - - 1289l L oe - uoneayisse|ay
{£96'32) - (v} [#z0'a) sy (#56) - - O LS,
F6E"04) - (5h = (BREDL) - - - sEsods]
£82'691 QZE'ELL 28 ae8's ZEI'OF £EE'S Oiv - ECEHEE
Bt - - - iy (gt - - sEoUsE) P abusyox]
66165 are' Ll YEG T LWSLE'E (95'520° 1 Pl P06 ZELBE SEYEEL Jesd eroueuy jo Guuwbeg
a0
000.5 0005 0005 0005 0005 000.5 0005 0005 GLOZ
(=101 sgaboud-ul  s|EWIUE Wesks [BaQoe|e sajaIyan spuswesosdun  sjuswsaosdLl pue| dnoug
-UORINGSUSD  JQIYET  PUE |BIUBLDaW DjoL pue pue seuadosd pue senledosd ploysedy
quswdinbe sBuipy ‘ssumyxy ‘pue| ployssean ployaadd

sjaed awayy quawdinbes

‘suonIenle Jayndwod

2lqngd ‘asugoey

l@anNNILNOD2) LNIWLIND3 ONY LNY1d ‘ALY3dodd ‘B

0Z0Z H3EW303A 12 J3ANT Hy3A THIDNYNIS IHL HOA

SIN3INW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S31ON

78 | GENTING SINGAPORE AMMUAL REPORT 2020

167/217



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED)

Computer
edquipment,
Leasehold fixtures and Construction-
proparty fittings in-prograss Total
Company £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
2020
Cost
Beginning of financial year 379 438 - 817
Additions 637 12 - 649
Disposal = (6) = (€)
End of financial year 1,016 444 - 1,460
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 324 350 - 674
Depraciation 319 50 - 369
Disposal - (2) - ]
End of financial year 643 398 - 1,041
Net book value
End of financial year 373 46 - 419
2019
Cost
Baginning of financial yaar 379 388 16 783
Additions = 34 - 34
Reclassification - 16 {16) -
End of financial year 379 438 - 817
Accumulated depreciation
Baginning of financial year - 274 - 274
Depreciation 324 s - 400
End of financial year 324 Jall - 674
Net book value
End of financial year 35 88 - 143

ROU assets are recognised and inchuded in leasehold land, leasehold properties, certain machinery and motor
vehicles of the Group and of the Company, The details are sat out in Note 20,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

10. INTANGIELE ASSETS

Trademarks
and Goodwill on Compiter

tradenames  acquisition Licences software Total
Group 5'000 £'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
2020
Cosi
Beginning of financial year 1,057 83,049 87,162 24,361 195,629
Additions - - - 4,440 4,440
End of financial year 1,067 83,049 &7,162 28,801 200,069
Accumulated amortisation
Baginning of financial year = - 28,59 14,158 42,749
Amortisation - - 24,404 1,623 26,027
End of financial year - - 52,095 15,781 68,776
Net book value
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 34,167 13,020 131,293
2019
Caost
Beginning of financial year 1.057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
Additions = - 72,000 3,712 75,712
Written off - - (B6,000) [384) [66,384)
End of financial year 1.057 83,049 B7.162 24,361 195,629
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year - - 0,019 12,269 82,988
Amortisation - - 24 £72 1,673 26,145
Written off - - {86,000) (384} [E6,384)
End of financial year - - 28,591 14,158 42,749
Net book value
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 58,571 10,203 152,880

Amortisation expense of 526,027,000 (2019: $26,145,000) has bean included in cost of sales.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

10.

11.

INTAMGIELE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to geographical areas. A segment-level summary
of the allocation of goodwill with indafinite usaful life is as follows:

Group
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Goodwill attributable o
Singapore 83,047 83,047
Malaysia 2 2
83,049 83,049

The goodwill attributed to the Singapore CGU mainly arose from the acquisition of the remaining 25% equity
interest in Resorts Waorld at Sentosa Pte. Ltd. ("RWSPL") which devaloped the first integrated resort in Singapore.
The impairment tast for goodwill ralating to the Singapore CGU was assessad using the valus-in-use method,
Cash flow projections used in thiz calculation were bazed on financial budgets approved by management. The
cash flow projection covers a five-year period, Cash flows bayond the five-year period wera axirapalated using
the estimated growth rate stated below. The growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the leisure and hospitality industry in which the CGLU operates,

Key assumptions used in the valus-in-use calculation for 2000 include a growth rate and weighted avarage cost
of capital "WACC™) of 2.0% and 10.2% (2019: 2.0%, 9.9%) respectivaly.

Based on the impairment test, no impairment is required for goodwill atiributed to the Singapore CGU. A
reasonably possible change in a kay assumption on wihich management has based its determination of tha

CGU's recoverable amount would not cause its carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Share of net assets of joint venture:
DCP (Sentosa) Pla. Lid. 63,483 62,239

On 15 April 2008, AWSPL enterad info a joint venture with Sentosa Leisure Management Pte. Lid. (*SLM") to
build and operate a district cooling plant on Santosa Island, Singapore, through the formation of DCP (Santosa)
Pta, Ltd. ("DCP%), a private company incorporated in Singapore, RBWSPL and SLM own 80% and 20% of the
share capital of OCFP respectively. DCP is deemed to be a joint venture of the Group, as both RWSPL and SLM
have contractually agread to the sharing of cantral in DCP.
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11.  INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information of DCP is as follows:

2020 2019
$'000 £'000
Mon-current assets
Intangible asset - leasehold land use right 4,986 5,094
Proparty, plant and squipment 62,414 65,795
Other receivables 47 48
67,447 70,937
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15,928 7.970
Cash and cash eguivalents 23,747 26,984
39,675 34,954
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (3,051) (3,341)
Income tax liabilities {1,151} (1,329
Leass liakilities [169) -
(4,371) (4,670)
Mon-current liabilities
Dafarred tax labilitias (6,429) (6,813)
Leasa liakilitiss [16,968) [16,609)
[23,397) (23,422
Met assets 79,354 7i.799
Revenusa 13,778 21,170
|Expenses)/income include:
= Depreciation and amortisation {4,066) [3,565)
— Interast income 107 209
= Interest expense [S28) (S28)
Profit before taxation 1,912 6,061
Taxation [35T) {1,077)
Profit after taxation and total comprehensive income 1,555 4,984

DCP does not have any contingent liabilities.
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11.

12.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the summarizsed financial information presented, (o the carrying amount of the Group's inferest
in DCF, is as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Met assets
Beginning of financial year 77,799 72,815
Profit after taxation and total comprehensive income 1,555 4,984
End of financial year 79,354 77,799
Carrying value of Group's interest in DCP 63,483 62,239
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2020 2019

$'000 £'000
Unguoted shares - at cost 1,141,005 144 522
Less: Allowancs for impairment - -

1,141,005 144,522

Amount dus from subsidiary 2,074,000 2,074,000
Net investment in subsidiaries 3,215,005 2,218,522

Dwring the financial year, the Company increased its investment in a wholly-cwned subsidiary by 51,000,000.000.

The amount due from subsidiary is non-trade in nature, unsscured and interest-free. Repayments arg not
expected within the next 12 months. This amount is considered part of net investments in subsidiaries.

Tha movaments in allowance for impairment are as follows:

Company

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year - 43
Striking-off of subsidiary - {43
End of financial year = -
Details of the Company's significant subsidiary are as follows:

Country of Effective equity interest

Indirect subsidiary incorporation 2020 2019 Principal activities
RAWSPL Singapore 100% 100% Development and cperation of

an Integrated Rasort at Senfosa
The financial statements of this subsidiary are audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore.

The Group has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the listing manual issued by the SGX-3T in relation to the
appointment of its auditors,
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13. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against currant tax labilites and whan the defarred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts,
determined pricr to offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets
To ke recoverad after ona year 111 276
Defarred tax liabilities
To be sattled after one year (225,525) (231,382)
Total deferred taxes (225,414) (231,1086)
Details of deferred taxes prior to offsetting are as follows:
{Charged)/
Beginning of credited to End of
financial year profit or loss financial year
Group £'000 $'000 $£'000
2020
Deferred tax assets
Provisions 1,820 (1,199) 621
Deferred tax liabilities
Proparty, plant and eguipment (230,912) 7,370 (223,542)
Intangible assets [2,014) (479 [2,493)
(232,926) 6,891 (226,035)
Total deferred taxes {231,106} 5,692 (225,414)
2019
Defarrad tax assats
Provisions 315 1,506 1.820
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipmsnt (287,156} E6,244 (230,812
Intangible assets {1,716} {228) (2,014)
(288,872) 55,946 (232,926)
Total deferred taxes (288,557} 57,4581 (231,108)
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FIMANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 233,251 221,13
Fair value gain 8,273 13,681
Dispogals (205,630) =
Exchange diffarences 2,022 {1.431)
End of financial year 37,916 233,251
Quated debl securities” - 195,407
Unguoted dabt securities” 37,916 37,844
37,916 233,281

(&} The imestmants in portfalio of quoted debt securities had no fived maturily of coupon rate. As al 31 Dacember 2020,
the Group has fully redeemed its investment in quoled dabt securitias.

1211 The imvestments in unguoled debl secunities represant unguoled investment in a foreign corporation and an investment
fund.

TRADE AND OTHER REGEIVABLES

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 5'000 £'000
Current
Trade receivables 246,528 410,618 - -
Amounts due from subsidiarias - - 120,016 a7.171
Other raceivables 23,876 24,998 4,063 22,168
Amounts due from subsidiaries of the
ultimate holding corporation 1 63 - -
Loan o a subsidiary - — 194,409 392,710
270,405 435,679 318,488 512,049
Less: Impairment (Mote 28{d)) (226,566) {312,389) {120,300) (99,119
43,838 123,290 198,188 412,830
Deposits 3,710 4,072 1 i
Prepaymants 8,594 10,082 234 180
96,143 137,454 198,423 413,111
Mon-current
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 127,176 127,178
Other recaivables I6T - - -
Loan fo a subsidiary - - 262,500 262,500
67 - 389,676 389,675
Less: Impairment (Mote 26(d)) - - [T80) (1,134]
67 - 388,896 388,541
Frapayments 7064 a7 1 - -
7,431 a71 388,896 388,541
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15. TRADE AMD OTHER RECEIVABLES ({CONTINUED)

The loans and amounts due from subsidiares are mainly non-trade in natwre, unsecured and interast-free axcopt
for $456,900,000 (2019; $6588,210,000) which are interast bearing, and $388,896,000 (2019; $388,841,000)
which repayments are not expected within the next 12 months. The current foan and amounts due from
subsidiaries are repayable on demand,

16. INVENTORIES

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Retail stocks 1,287 5.684
Food, bevarage and hotal supplies 16,626 18,471
Stores and technical spares 25,871 24,5680
43,784 48,695

The cost of imentories recognized as an expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to 235,087,000
(2019: 871,152,000).

17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Shart-term depasits with banks 3,002,133 3,519,522 2,166,008 3,293,082
Cash and bank balances 991,951 427,728 240,845 236,503
Cash and cash eguivalents 3,994,084 3,247 250 2,406,853 3,529,675
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
5000 5'000 5'000 5000
Current
Trade payables 668 1,317 11 T48
Accruad operating liabilities 132,516 215,889 25,072 15,051
Accruad capital expenditure 9,588 12,334 - -
Ratention monles and deposits 4,167 4,691 - -
Contract liabilities 137,858 181,424 - -
Other payables 43,639 66,806 1,030 208
Amounts dus 1o;
= Ultimate holding corporation 66 15 - -
= Immediate holding corporation 19 89 7 26
- Subsidiaries - - 04,802 139,147
= Joint venture 14,609 5,859 - -
343,130 452,474 120,922 155,177
Mon=current
Ratenticn monies and deposits 219 370 - -
Other payables - 447 - -
219 Bi7 - -
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18.

14,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Ratantion monies refer to amounts withhald from contractors’ claim for work done in accordance with contractual
rights, which are progressively released upan the complation of the projact.

Contract liabiities represant parformance obligations that are contracted for but whosa revenus have not baan
recognised in the financial statements. They are expacted to be recognisaed as revenus in the next financial year.

Tha following table summarises the contract habilities activity related to contracts with customers:

Customer deposits

Deferred revenue

Other contract liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Group $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance as at 1 January 79,864  70.033 43,360 33,609 58,200 58,225
Balance as at 31 December 61,792 70884 20,854 43,360 55,212 58,200
{Decrease)fincrease {18,072) 2,831 (22,508) 9,661 (2,988) (25)

Customer deposits and deferred revenue represent cash received frem customers for future gaming and
non-gaming services provided by the Group, Other contract liabilities mainly include loyalty program liabilities

and outstanding chips liabilities.

The amounts due to ultimate holding corporation, immeadiate holding corporation and subsidiaries are mainiy
non-trade in nature, unsscurad, interest-res and are repayabla on demand,

BORROWINGS
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
S"000 £'000 5'000 5'000
Gurrant
Lease liakilities 3,977 3,981 325 56
MNon-current
Leass liabilities 6,802 9,868 59 3
Bonds 255,990 246,786 255,990 246,786
262,792 256,654 256,049 246,789
Total borrowings 266,769 260,645 256,374 246,845

On 24 October 2017, the Company issuad an unsscured and unsubordinated Japanese Yen-denominated bonds with
a principal amount of Japaness Yen 20,000,000,000 (approximately 5240,240,000) in Japan, acting through its Japan
branch. The bonds have a coupon rate of 0.885% per annum and are due for repayment five years from the issue date.
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20. LEASES

{a) When the Group and the Company is a lessee

The Group and the Company leases land, leasehold properties, machinery and motor vehicles with varying

terms and conditions, The lease agresments do not impose any covanants,

(i) Carrying amounts of ROL aszats

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
5'000 5°000 5'000 5000
Leasehald land 736,334 749,868 - -
Leasehold properties 1,369 1,188 372 54
Machinery and mator vehicles 8,873 11,808 ] 4
T46,576 TE2,964 ars 5B

Additions to ROU assets during the financial year amounted to 3,495 000 (2019: 2209,000) for

the Group and $643.000 (2019; 86,000) for the Company.

(i} Amounts recognized in the statement of compreheansive income

Group

2019
$'000

13,533
1,162
4,269

18,964

1,615

2020
£'000
Depreciation on ROU assats:
Leasehold land 13,533
Leasehold properties 1,248
Machinery and motor vehiclas 3,520
18,301
Interast expanse (included in finance costs) 1,145
Expensas relaling to short-term leases (included in cost of
sales, administrative expanses and selling and distribution
ERPENSEs) 1,011

1,324

(iiiy Total cash outflow for leases during the financial year is 57,031,000 (2012: 37,741,000).
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20.

21.

LEASES [CONTINUED)

b}  When the Group is a lessor
The Group leases out retail spaces and offices under operating leases, where the Group retains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, The Group collects deposits from leases o manage

cradit risk,

The undiscounted lease receivables under operating leases are as follows:

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Mot later than one year 12,685 16,875
Cne to two years 5,640 11,231
Two to three years 1,709 4,860
Thras to four yaars 988 1,416
Four to five years 8 7id
Later than five yaars 36 44
21,067 35,200
SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES
Share capital Treasury shares
Meo. of shares Amount Ne. of shares Amount
Group and Company ‘000 £'000 ‘000 £'000
2020
Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,827,705 [36,792) (29,541)
Treasury shares raissusd - - 7,570 6,056
End of financial year 12,084,027 5,527,705 (29,222) {23,485)
2019
Beginning of financial year 12,084 027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,349
Treasury shares reissuad = - 7,240 5,808
End of financial year 12,004,027 5,527,705 (36,792) [20,541)

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ardinary shares.

{a) Treasury shares
At the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) of the Company held ocn 28 May 2020, the shareholders of the
Company approved the renewal of the authority for the Company to purchass its shares of up to 10%

of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any paint in time.

During the financial year, the Company did not acquire any of its shares through purchases on the
SEX-8T.
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21. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (CONTINUED)
3] Rencunceable underwritten rights issue (“2009 Rights Issue”)

The Company had on 9 September 2009 announced that the Company would be undertaking a
rencunceable rights issug of up to 2,043,716,004 new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
at an issue price of 30.80 for each rights share on the basis of one right share for every S existing
ordinary shares in the Company hald by the shareholders on 23 September 2009, Based on the issued
share capital of the Company on 23 September 2009, 1,931,564,.264 rights shares were available
under the 2009 Rights lzsue. The 2002 Rights Issue was oversubscribed and raisad gross proceads
of approximately 51.55 billion for the Company. The 2009 Rights Issue was completed on 21 October
2002 with the listing and guotation of 1,831,564.264 rights sharas on the Main Board of the SGX-5T.

As at 31 Decamber 2020, the procaads from the 2008 Rights Issue have been fully utilised in accordance
with its stated use and the breakdown is as follows:

£'000
Cost of issuance 37,832
Repayment of term loan facilities taken for the acquisition of Genting UK PLC 30,675
Repayment of the Group's $2.27 bilion syndicated senior secured credit facilities 217,817

Met repayment of revolving cradit facility taken for the working capital of the Group's
LK operations 70,000
Subscription of shares in subsidiaries 322,533
Imvestment in an associate 412,271
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 169,648
Payment of operating expenses of the Company and its subsidiaries 284,475
1,545,251
Balance unutilisad -
Total proceeds 1,545,251
22, OTHER RESERVES
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

5000 £'000 $'000 £'000
Performance share raserve (a) 12,703 9,479 12,703 9,479
Exchange translation reserve (b} 6,514 7.2895 (652) (4]
19,217 16,774 12,051 2,475

{a) Performance share reserve

Performance share resernwe comprise cumulative fair value of services recaived from employees measured
at the date of grant for unvested equity-settled performance shares under the Genting Singapores
Performance Share Scheme ["PSS").
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22. OTHER RESERVES [CONTINUED)
{a) Performance share reserve (Continued)

On B August 2007, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the PSS for an initial
pariod of up to 7 August 2017 (the “Initial Period”). The objective of the PSS is to attract and retain the
Group's executives, executive directors and non-executive directors, who are in the position o drive the
growth of the Company. The PSS gives the Company flexibility in relation to the Group's remunaration
package for the Group's executives, exscutive directors and non-executive directors and allows the
Group to manage its fixed overheads. On 21 April 2016, the shareholdars of the Company approved
amendments to the rules of the PSS and the extension of the duration of the PSS for a further period of
10 years, from & August 2017 to 7 August 2027 (both dates inclusive) (the “Extended Perind®).

Under tha PSS, the Company may grant to participants parformance share awards which raprasent the
right of such participants to receive fully paid shares free of charge, upon such participants satistying
tha criteria et out in the PS5 and such conditions as may be imposed. The number of shares which
ara the subject of each performance share award shall be determined at the absclute discretion of the
Ramuneration Committes, which shall take inte account various eriterla including those sat out In the
rules of the PS5, The Company will deliver shares to bs received under a performance share award by
issuing new shares and/or transferring treasury shares to the participants.

The total numbar of shares which may be awarded purzuant to performance share awards granted under
the PSS during the Initial Pericd shall not exceed 208,853,893 shares, and when added to the number
of shares iszuad andfor issuable under such other share-baszad incentive schemes of the Company, shall
not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding freasury shares) from
time to time. The total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant to performance share awards
granted under the PSS during the Extended Period shall not exceed 420,433,143 shares, and whan
added to the number of shares issued and/or issuable under such other share-based incentive schemes
of the Company, shall not excesd 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding
treasury shares) from time to ime. As at 31 December 2020, no participant other than Mr Tan Hea Teck,
has received £% or mare of the total number of performance share awards available under the PSS,

The vesting of performance shares granted under PSS is subject to the achieving of pre-agreed service
and/or performance conditions over the performance period.

For performance share grants with pre-agreed senvice conditions, the fair value was determined based
an the Company’s closing market price at tha date of grant. The waighted average fair value per share
granted in 2020 was 30.81 (2019: 51.04).

Movaments in the number of parformance shares cutstanding are as follows:

Group and Company

2020 2019
Beginning of financial year 12,215,000 7,405,000
Grantad 48,874,000 12,905,500
Lapsed (2,357,700) (855,350
lssued (7,570,300) (7,240,150
End of financial year 51,161,000 12,215,000
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22. OTHER RESERVES ([CONTINUED)

b} Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprise foreign exchange differances arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foraign operations where functional currencies are different from the prasentation

currency of the Group.

23. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT GRATUITIES

Beginning of financial year
Credited to profit or loss
Fayment made

Exchange diffarences

End of financial year

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
263 490 &7 57
(59) (156) = -
- (F1) - -
1 - - -
205 263 57 &7

Retirement gratuities are payable to certain employess upan their refirgment. The gratuities provided are factorad
for discount rates, based on interest rates available in the market for bonds with A~A ratings, and attrition rates

based on age bands.

24. DIVIDENDS

Final dividends paid in respect of the previous financial year of

2.5 cents per ordinary share” (2019: 2.0 cents per ordinary share)

Mo interim dividend declared and paid in respect of current financial year

{2019: 1.5 cents per ordinary shara)

Group and Company

2020 2019

5'000 5'000

301,620 241,145
- 180,858

On 28 May 2020, the sharehciders approved the payment of the final dividend of 2.5 cents per crdinary share in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2019, The dividend has been accounted for in shareholders” equily as an

appropriation of retained eamings in the financial year ended 31 December 2020,

The Directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of 1 cent per ordinary share, in respect of the financial
year anded 31 December 2020, subject to the approval of shareholders at the next AGM of the Company.
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend, which will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as
an appropriation of reétained eamings in the financial year ending 31 Decambar 2021, after it has besn approved

by shareholders at the AGM.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Authonised capital expenditure not provided for in the financial statements:
Contracted — propearty, plant and equipment including capltal expanditure
committed in relation to expansion of integrated resort 4,419,224 4,485,538

AWSPL entered into a second supplemental agreement with Sentoza Development Corporation ("SDC") an
3 April 2019, in relation to the construction, development and astablishment of an expanded integrated resart,
and committed to invest approximately 34.5 billion in a renewal and refresh of the integrated resort.

FIMANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's overall financial risk management objective is to optimise value creation for shareholders, The Group
seaks to minimise the potential adverss impact arising from fluctuations in foraign exchange and interest rates
and the unpredictability of the financial markets on the Group's financial performance.

The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board of Directors. Financial
risk management is carried out through risk reviews conducted at all significant operational units. This process
is further enhanced by effective internal controls, a group-wide insurance programme and adherence to the
financial risk fhanagamant policias,

The main arsas of financial risk faced by the Group are as follows:
{a) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group has certain investiments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposad to foreign
curency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group's foreign operations
is managad primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currancias.

The Group is exposad to foreign currency exchange risk whan the Company and its subsidiaries enter
into transactions that are not denominated in their functicnal currencies. To manage these exposuras,
the Group takes advantage of any natural offsets of the Group's revenue and expenszes denominated in
foreign currencies and may from time to time enter into foreign exchange forward contracts for a portion
of tha remalning exposure ralating to thesa forecast fransactions when deemed appropriate.

The Group's and Company's principal net foreign currency exposures mainly relate to the United States
Dollar LUSD).
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

{a) Foreign currency exchange risk (Continued)

The Group's and Company's currency exposures are as follows:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
uso 5000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 37,916 112,878 - -

Trade and other receivables T8T a7 163 545
Cash and cash equivalents 104,915 78,309 104,344 77.518

143,618 191,784 104,507 78,081
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (3,862} [3,828) (514) (894)
Lease liabilities 9,207} {11.902) - -

{13,089) (15,730} (514) (2894)
Met currency exposures 130,549 176,054 103,993 77067

If tha USD changes against the Singapore Dollar ("SGD7) by 1% (2019:; 19%) with all other variables being
held constant, the effects on profit before taxation will ba as follows:

Increase/|{decrease)
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
5000 £'000 £'000 £'000
USD against SGD
- Strengthenad 1,305 1,761 1,040 77
- Weakeanad {1,305} (1,781) {1,040) (771)

(b) Price risk

As at 31 Decamber 2020, the Group is exposed to sacurities price risk ariging from its debt securities
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. If prices for debt secuwrities increase/’
decreagse by 1,000 basis points (2019: 100 basis poins) with all other variables being held constant,
the profit before taxation will be higher/lowsr by $3,792,000 (2019 51,954,000} a5 a result of fair value
gain/oss on thase debt sacurities.,

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are not subject to material interest rate risk.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

{d

Credit risk

Credit risk iz the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of counterparties of the Group, to sattle
their financial and contractual ebligation as and when they fall dus.

The Group's main class of financial assats that are subject to cradit risk are trade and other recaivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The Group's financial
aszats except trade and other receivables are subject o immaterial credit loss.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum axposure 1o cradit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statements of
financial position.

Trade receivables

In managing cradit risk exposure from trade recelvables, majority of which are related to casino daebtors,
the Group has established a credit committee and processes to evaluats the credilworthiness of ils
counterparties. The counterparty's paymeant profile and credit exposure are continuously monitorad by the
cradit committes, togather with the operational palicies and guidslines, Credit expasure to an individual
countarparty is rastrictad by the credit limits 2ot by the credit committes based on the ongoing credit
evaluation. The top 10 trade debtors of the Group represented 28% (2019; 20%) of trade receivables.

In measuring the lifetime expectad cradit lossas, the Group uses the provision matrix method where trade
receivables are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due. The expacted
Ioss rates are based on the payment profiles and the corresponding historical credit (osses exparienced,
The Group has considered forward-locking information and datarminad that it does not significantly affect
the historical credit losses,

The Group considers a trade receivable as credit impaired when ong or more events that have a
defrimental impact on the estimated cash flow have occurred. These instances include adverse changes

in the financial capability of the debitor and default or significant delay in payments,

The movameants in allowance for impairmant on trade receivablas are as follows:

Group

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 312,389 239,070
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss {17,299) 110,024
Allowancs utilised (68,517) [36,608)
Exchange differances (7) (6]
End of financial year 226,566 312,389

Trade recalvables are written off when thera is no reasonable expactation of recovary, with the case-by-
case assassment parformed based on indicators such as insolvency or demise. Where receivables are
written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity 1o attempt to recover the receivables
dua. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or logs.

oOoOooodn
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

id) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's credit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables are as follows:

Past due Past due Past due
less than 3 to more than
Not past due 3 months & months & months Total

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2020
Trade receivables 18,082 3,440 5,198 219,808 246,528
Allowance for impainment 1,412) (2,723) {3,847) (218,584) [226,566)
Total 16,670 Ti7 1,351 1,224 19,962
2019
Trade receivables 115,137 66,033 55,618 173,830 410,618
Allowance for impairment [24,262) (58,757) (55,568) (173,802 (312,3589)
Total 90,875 7276 50 28 98,229

Other receivables

The Group and the Company use the below internal credit risk categories for other receivables which
are subject to expacted credit losses approach permitted undar SFRS(l) 9 Financial Instrumeants. The
4 categories reflect the respective credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for each of those

categories as fellows:

Category

Description

Basis for recognition of
expected credit losses

Parforming

Under-parforming

Mon-pearforming

Wite-off

Low risk of default and a strong capacity
to meset contractual cash flows.

Significant increasa in credit risk since
initial recognition,

Evidence indicating thal the asset is
impaired.

Mo reazonable expectation of recovery.,

12-month expected cradit lossas

Lifetime expectad credit losses

Lifetime expectad credit losses

Amount ks written off

Cther than the Company's amounts due from subsidiaries and loan to a subsidiany (Note 15) which
ara under-performing, the Group and Company bave no financial assats that are subject to more than

immatearial cradit lossas,
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

{d)

(e)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

The movements in allowance for impairment on other receivables are as follows:

Gompany

2020 2019

$'000 3000
Beginning of financial year 100,253 154,785
Chargedficradited) to profit or loss 20,827 (291
Allowances utilised - (51,797)
Exchange differences = (1,754
End of financial year 121,080 100,253

Liquidity risk

The Group praclises prudent liquidity risk management to minimise the mismatch of financial assets
and liabilities. The Group's cash flow is reviewed ragularly o ansura that the Group is able to saltla its
commitments when they fall due.

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregaled for Group
purposes, Tha Group moniters rolling forecasts of its liguidity reqguirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to mest operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn borrowing facilities at all
times so that the Group does not braach borrowing limits o covenants on any of its borrowing facllities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group's dabt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal ratio targets.

Tha table below analyses the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period as at reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the tatle are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Between Qver
1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
2020
Trade and other payablas® 208,272 = 219 =
Bonds 1,717 258,076 = -
Lease liabilities 4,863 3,783 4,007 -
211,852 261,859 4,226 -
2019
Trade and other payables” 308,050 447 3ro -
Bonds 1,658 1.658 249,165 -
Lease labilities 4 956 3,850 8.002 -
314 664 5,955 267 537 -
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

{e) Liguidity risk {Continued)

Less than Betwean Between Over
1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
$'000 £'000 £'000 5000
Company
2020
Trade and other payables* 120,922 - - -
Bonds 1,717 258,076 - -
Leasa liabilities 332 57 2 -
122,971 258,133 2 -
2019
Trade and other payables® 165,177 - - -
Bonds 1,658 1,658 249165 =
Lease liabilities 57 2 1 -
166,802 1,660 249166 =

Exciudes conlract liabilities
if} Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capltal are to safequard the Group's ability to continue as a goling
concern in order to provide returns for sharsholders and benefits for other stakeholdars.

In order to optimise the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to sharaholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, take on new
debt or s&ll assats to reduce debt.

Consistent with the indusiry, the Group monitors capital utilisation based on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total dabt dividad by total capital, Total debt is calculated as total borrowings.

Total capital is calculated as equily attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Company plus total debt,

The gearing ratios are as follows:

Group
2020 2019
5'000 5000
Total debt 266,769 260,645
Total eguity attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 7,835,560 8,057,589
Total capital 8,102,329 8,318,234
Gearing ratio 3% 3%

There ware no changes in the Group's appreach to capital management during the current financial year,

The Group is not subject 1o any externally imposad capital requirements.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

£=)]

Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Group®s assats and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by
level of the following fair valus measurement higrarchy:

(i} Cuoted prices (unadjustad) in active markets for idantical assats or liabilities (Level 1);

(i} Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the azsat or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

{iiiy Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (Level 3).
Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2020
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 14) - - 37,916 37,916
2019
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 14) - 195,407 37,844 233,251

There ware no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on closing quoted market prices
on the last market day at the reporting date. A market Iz regarded as active If quoted pricas are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and thase prices reprasent actual and regularly occurring market ransactions on an arm's lergth
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. These instruments are
imcluded in Level 1.

Tha fair valua of financial instrumeants that are not traded in an active market (for exampla, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniguas. These valuation techniques maximise
tha usa of observable market data whera it is available and rely as little as possible on antity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are cbservable, the instrument is
included in Lavel 2.

The Group uses a vanety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
axisting at each reporting date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used
to estimate fair value for long term dabt for disclosure purposes. Other technigues, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used 1o determing fair value for the remaining financial instruments,
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
{g) Fair value estimation [Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Lavel 3. Changing orne or mora of the unabsarvabla inputs in the valuation technigue usad for
Leved 3 instruments will not significantly impact the fair value of these instruments. The assessment of the
fair value of unguotad dabt securitias is parformed on a quarterly basis based on the latest available data
such as underlying net assat value of the investes entity to approximate the fair value as at reporting date,

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments:

Group

2020 2019

$'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 37,844 37,994
Disposals (7,043) -
Fair value gain recognised in profit or [oss 7,234 373
Exchange differences (119) (523)
End of financial year 37,916 37,844

The fair value of current and non-current financial assets and labiities approximate their carrying amounts.
{h) Financial instruments by category

The aggregate carrying amounts of financial instruments are categorised as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
51000 S'000 S'000 £'000
Fimancial aszsets at amortisad cost 4,042,000 4,074,612 2,993,938 4,331,147
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 37,916 235,251 - -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 472,260 569,512 377,206 402,022
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company’s immediate holding corparation is Genting Overseas Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in the Isle of Man. The ultimate holding corporation is Genting Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia and
whose shares ara listed on tha Bursa Malaysia Sacurities Berhad,

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the consclidated financial statements, the following
significant transactions ook place batwean the Group and related parties:

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
(i Sales of goods andfor sarvicas to;
= A joint venture 862 1,260
- Other related parties 1,159 1,402
2,021 2,662
(il Purchases of goods andfor sarvices from;
- A joint ventwre {13,778) (21,1709
— Other related parties (49) 1540)
(13,827) (21,710

Key management remuneration (including directors® remuneration):

Key management remuneration includes fees, salaries, bonus, commission and other emoluments computed
baszad on tha costs incurrad by the Group, and where the Group did not Incur any costs, the value of the benefit.

The remuneration of directors and the key management parsonnel are analysad as follows:

Group
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Hon-executive directors
- Faes and masting allowancas 1,186 1,380
= Share-based payment” 550 535
1,736 1,915
Executive directors
- Fees and mesting allowances 48 66
- Salaries, bonus and othar emaolumeants” 24,436 16,156
= Defined contribution plan 35 29
- Share-based paymeant” 8,630 2,140
33,150 18,391
Tatal 34,886 20,306
Key management personnel (excluding directors’ remuneration)
= Salaries, bonus and other emoluments 3,658 5,538
- Defined contribution plan 150 185
= Share-based payment” 2,029 2,148
Total - 5,837 7.851

Include accruats of special incantive ewards which are subject 1o achievement of pre-agreed service andior performance
conditions over the performance period,
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports that are used by the chief operating
decision-maker 1o make strateglc decislons.

Tha chief operating decision-maker congidars the businass from both busingss and gaographic perspactives,
Business segment

The Singapore leisure and hospitality segment derives revenue from the development and operation of the
integrated resort,

Under the Development Agreement signed between the S0C and the Group, the Group is required to construsct,
devalap and oparate a resort with a comprehensive range of integrated and synergised amanities for recraation,
entertainment and lifestyle uses, This includes Key atlractions such as hotels, event facilities, retail, dining,
entertainment shows, themed attractions and casing, which must be at all imes operated and managed together,
Each key attraction cannot be closed without prior written approval from S0C.

The investmeant business derives revenue from investing in assets to generate future income and cash flows.,

Sales between segments are carried out at arm's length, The revanue from axternal parties reparted to the
chief operating dacision-maker is maasurad in a mannar consistent with that in the statement of comprahansive
income.

The chief operating decision-maker assasses the performance of the operating segments based on a maasure
of adjusted samings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“Adjusted EBITDA"). This measurement
basis excludes the effects of gaindoss on disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held-for-sale, share-based
payment, net exchange gainfdoss relating to investments and othar incomea/expansas which include impairment/
writg-oft/gaindloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, pre-opening/development expensas and other
non-recurring adjustments.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, trade and other
recaivables, financial assats at fair value through profit or loss, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabiliies comprisa all liabilities other than current and deferred tax liabilities and borrowings.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Leisure and Hospitality

Groug Singapore Others® Investments Total
2020 5000 3'000 5'000 £'000
Gaming 700,816 - - 700,816
Mon-gaming 284,519 - - 284,519
Other revenue 14,910 61,225 6,133 82,268
Inter-sagment révenus - - |3,854) [3,854)
External revenue 1,000,245 61,225 2,278 1,063,749
Adjusted EBITDA 445,690 [936) {17,741} 427,013
Share of results of joint venture 1,244 - - 1,244
Dapraciation of property, plant and equipmeant (274,973) - {1,411) (276,384)
Amortisation of intangible assats (26,027) - - (26,027)
Assets
Segment assals 5,989,622 46,687 2,687,649 8,723,958
Interests in joint venture 63,483 - - 63,483
Defarred tax assets . L 1
Conzolidated total assets 8,787,552
Segment assals include;
Additions to:

- Property, plant and eguipment 83,638 - 2,001 85,639

= Intangible asssls 4,440 - - 4,440
Liabilities
Segmant liabilites 314,495 1,476 27,583 343,554
Borrowings 266,769
Income tax liakilitias 116,142
Deferred tax liabilities 225,525
Consclidated total liabilities 951,990

Other keisure and r‘.ﬂﬁpﬂﬂllw S8 menl malnky represents olher hl’}ﬁ-pltﬂl-'l]l and suppar sandces.
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION [CONTINUED)

Leisure and Hospitality

Group Singapore Others® Investments Total
2019 S'000 $'000 £'000 £'000
Gaming 1,619,667 - - 1,619,667
Mon-gaming B32,389 - - 832,389
Other revenue 25477 08 6,011 31,004
Inter-sagment révenus - - (3.710) (3,710
External revenue 2477533 206 2,301 2,480,340
Adjusted EBITDA 1,232,284 (5,523) (37, 128) 1,189,633
Share of results of joint venture 3,987 - - 3,987
Dapraciation of property, plant and equipmeant (362,164) - {1,492} (363,656)
Amortisation of intangible assats (286,145) - = [26,143)
Assets
Segment assels 5,155,853 5817 4,025,723 2,187,563
Interests in joint venture 62,239 - - 62,239
Dafarred tax assets 278
Conzolidated total assets 9,250,078
Segment assats include;
Additions to:

- Property, plant and equipment 169,408 - 3,388 172,796

= Intangible asssls 75,712 - - 75,712
Liabilities
Segmant liabilities 470,473 2,344 17,737 490,554
Borrowings 260,645
Income tax liakilities 209,908
Deferred tax libilities 231,382

Consoclidated total liabilities 1,192 487

Qther kzisure and hospitality segment mainky represents other hospitality and suppon senvices.
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28.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before taxation is provided as follows:

Adjusted EBITDA for reportable sagments
Share-basad payment

Met exchange loss relating to investments
Depreciation and amaortisation

Interest income

Finance costs

Share of results of joint venture

Other [expengses)/fincome (net)”

Profit belore taxation

Group

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
427,013 1,188,633
{11,131) 18,530
(1,308) {8,871)
(302,411) (388,801)
45,546 80,073
(4,047) (20,495)
1,244 2,987
(41,840) 1,910
112,976 846,006

Cther (expenses)incomea (nel) include gainoss) on disposalimpairmantiwrite-off of property, plant and equipment,
pre-opening/development expenses and other non-recuring adjustments.

Geographical information

The Group oparates predominantly in Asia. The main business of the Group is in leisure and hospitality operations
in Singapore where the development and operation of an integrated resort contributes most of its revenus, The
oparations in other gecgraphical areas in the Asia Pacific {(excluding Singapora) are sales and marketing semnvicas
relating to the Group's leisure and hospitality related businesses and ofher investmeants,

Revenue is classified basaed on the location in which revenus is derived, Sales batween segments are aliminated,
Mon-current assets exclude deferred tax assels and financial assats at fair value through profit or loss.

Revenue
Singapore
Asla Pacific (excluding Singapora)

Mon-current assets
Singapore
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore)

Group

2020 2018

£'000 £'000
1,063,461 2,479,993
288 347
1,083,749 2,480,340
4,651,272 4,878,732
4,242 4,420
4,655,514 4,883,152

There is no revenue derived from transactions with a single external customer that amounted to 10% or more

of the Group's reveanue.
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29.  IMPACT OF COVID-19

The Coronavirus Diseass 2019 (COVID-19) has caused major disruptions to the travel and tourism industry, as
the pandemic resultad in border closures and other maasures imposed by the various governments. As part of
the Singapore Government’s Circuit Breaker measures, most of the semvice offerings of the Group's integrated
resort at Resorts World Sentosa, including attractions and casing ware temporarily suspendad fram 7 April
2020 to 30 June 2020, The COVID-19 pandemic had a negative impact on the Group's financial performance
for 2020 as the Group's integrated resort was built predominantly to attract large scale internaticnal demand.

Az the global COVID-12 situation remains vary fluid as at the date on which thase financial statements ware
authorised for issua, the Group is curently unable to estimate the financial impact to the Group's results for the
financial year ending 31 Decamber 2021. Notwithstanding this, the Group has assessad that the going concern
basis of preparation for this set of financial statements remains appropriate.

30. AUTHORISATION OF FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
on 9 February 2021,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GENTING SINGAPORE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Genting Singapore Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of the consolidated financial performance,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the
financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the Group comprise:
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020;
the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2020;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the financial year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements; for
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that
are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2020. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
1. Impairment of trade receivables

See Note 3(b) of the financial statements for
the related accounting policies, estimates
and judgements and Note 26(d) for the credit
risk exposure.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of the processes for credit
assessment and approval, and impairment assessment of trade
receivables. We tested the operating effectiveness of relevant

controls including the following:

The impairment of trade receivables, majority checked on a sampling basis that credit assessment has been

of which were related to casino debtors, was a
key audit matter as significant judgement was
involved in determining the expected credit
losses. These significant judgements included:

appropriately completed in accordance with the Group’s

standard operating procedures for credit granting;

checked on a sampling basis the authorisation of credit based

on the Group’s approval matrix for credit transactions; and

(i) grouping of trade receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and days
past due;

read the minutes of all the meetings of the credit committee
(which is responsible for the monitoring of trade receivables and
approval of impairment provisions) and checked that monitoring
(i) expected loss rates based on historical and credit risk assessment is performed.

credit loss experience; and

We reviewed the credit evaluation and monitoring files relating
identification of indicators of when
trade receivables are credit impaired.

(iii) to selected trade receivables. We held discussions with the
the credit

receivables to understand the judgements exercised in assessing

chairperson of committee about these trade

As at 31 December 2020, allowance for the expected credit loss of these trade receivables.

impairment amounted to $227 million and a net
reversal of impairment charge of

$23 million was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020.

We assessed the appropriateness of judgements made by
management based on historical trend of collections and external
data.

Based on the above, we are satisfied that the judgements made by
management are appropriate.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the chairman’s statement, 2020
highlights, board of directors, management & corporate information, corporate diary & RWS management team, financial
highlights & awards and accolades, year in review, corporate social responsibility, corporate governance, directors’
statement and group offices (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon), which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the other sections of the annual report (“the Other Sections”) which are
expected to be made available to us after that date.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Other Sections, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with SSAs.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and SFRS(l)s, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and the other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary
corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's reportis Tan Boon Chok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 9 February 2021
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